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BEFORE THE DIRECTOR
ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
542 4TH AVENUE
PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 15219

UNITED STATES STEEL
CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation,

Appellant,

Appeal of Enforcement Order
#180601

V. .

ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH
DEPARTMENT, Air Quality Program

Appellee.

AMENDED NOTICE OF APPEAL

NOW COMES, Appellant, UNITED STATES STEEL CORPORATION (hereinafter
“UJ.S. Steel”), pursuant to Sections 1103 and 1104 of Article XT of the Allegheny County Health
Department’s Rules and Regulations, before the Director of the Allegheny County Health
Department, filing this amended appeal from Enforcement Order #180601 (hereinafter “Order”),
as issued by the Allegheny County Health Department, Air Quality Program (hereinafter
“Department™), to U. S. Steel Clairton Works, and received by U. S. Steel on or about June 28,
2018 (attached hereto as Exhibit A). This Amended Notice of Appeal is being filed pursuant to
Section 1104(E) of Article XI of the Depariment’s Rules and Regulations. This submission
constitutes timely amendment of a Notice of Appeal of a Department action, and properly specifies
the manner in which U.S. Steel is aggrieved by the Department’s action, the nature of U.S. Steel’s

direct interest in the action and the grounds for appeal.




A. Manner in which U. S. Steel is Aggrieved and Grounds for Appeal

1. U. S. Steel owns and operates Clairton Works, a by-products coke plant which
includes 10 coke batteries located at 400 State Street, Clairton, PA 15025, with telephone number
(412) 233-1002 (hereinafter “Facility”).

2. The Department issued the Order dated June 28, 2018, and it was received by U. S.
Steel on or about the same date.

3. U. S. Steel objects to the Order. For the following reasons, the Department has
abused its discretion and acted unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, contrary to fact and law and
in a manner not supported by evidence:

a. Several paragraphs in the Order allege a specific rate or rates of compliance of less
than 100% for sources located at the Facility. See, e.g., Exhibit A, 1§ 8, 9, 10 and
11 on p. 3. Some paragraphs allege that a source failed to achieve a compliance
rate above a certain threshold. See, e.g., Exhibit A, § 12 on p. 3. Other paragraphs
allege a specific “facility-wide” rate of compliance. See, e.g., Exhibit A, § 13 on
p. 3. The Order provides insufficient information regarding the basis for such
compliance rates. The compliance rates were determined incorrectly and are
inconsistently applied for the source. The compliance rates in the Order are not
based on all available credible evidence. The rates expressed in the Order therefore
do not accurately reflect the Facility’s actual compliance status;

b. Several paragraphs in the Order allege a specific number of violations occurring
during various years. See, e.g., Exhibit A, {17, 18, 19, 20 and 21 on p. 4. The

Order provides insufficient information regarding the basis for these violation




figures. The figures expressed in the Order do not accurately reflect the Facility’s
actual compliance status;

Based upon informatioﬁ and belief, the Order assesses a penalty for visible emission
observations and calculations that are not .violaﬁons of applicable permit
conditions, rules and regulations;

. The Order identifies various. dates to support the alleged violations. These dates
arc arbitrary and result in a misrepresentation of the Facility’s compliance status;
Issues raised in the Order were previously addressed in a Consent Judgment
executed by U. S. Steel and the Department and approved by the Court of Common
Pleas of Allegheny County on March 24, 2016 (hereinafter “Consent Judgment”),
attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Department acted inappropriately to the extent
the Order contradicts, is inconsistent with and/or attempts to supersede the Consent
Judgment;

The Order unlawfully uses alleged violations that were resolved by the Consent
Judgment as entered by the Court of Common Pleas, as a basis for its issuance;
By issuance of the Order, the Department abused its discretion by imposing
obligations and compliance requirements upon U. S. Steel that are contrary to the
Department’s own policies and procedures;

. U.S. Steel and the Department previously agreed in the Consent Judgment that “the
most effective surrogate for environmental performance across the entire Facility
is plume opacity from the battery combustion stacks.” Exhibit B, ¥ 26 on p. 4.

However, the Order specifically contradicts the Consent Judgment in so far as the




Order focuses on and gives greater consideration to intermittent fugitive emission
sources—instead of the battery combustion stacks—for measuring compliance;
The Department’s inclusion of the combustion stacks and soaking and pushing
compliance at Batteries 1-3 as metrics to be used to determine compliance with the
Order is unlawful in so far as the Order imposes obligations upon U. S. Steel that
are contrary to the obligations and compliance schedule set forth in the Consent
JTudgment; |

The Department’s inclusion of the combustion stacks and other processes is
contrary to the Department’s own policies and procedures;

. The Order does not reflect the fact that certain work undertaken at the Facility to
implement long-term compliance solutions, including those required by the
Consent Judgment, may result in intermittent, short-term deviations attributable to
the non-steady state condition of the battery during the implementation of the
battery improvements. U. S. Steel previously advised the Department of this
reality. However, the Department proceeded to issue the Order asserting violations
relating to work performed to comply with the Consent Judgment and intended to
improve overall long-term battery performance;

Deparitment inspectors have failed to conduct proper, fair and unbiased evaluations
of the Facility and U. S. Steel performance data, as reflected in the Order;

. Because the Department has not adequately supported and will not be able to
support its assertions Iis-ted in the Order, and the basis of the assertions is the
inappropriate and unlawful reliance on skewed inspection data, the assertions and

allegations made in the Order are without merit;




n. The Department has inappropriately assigned individuals to work on both this
enforcement matter and a recently proposed Department ‘rulemaldng that would
impose significantly more stringent requirements on coke facilities. As a practical
matter, the only coke facility which would even be subject to the rulemaking is the
Facility owned and operated by U. S. Steel. This constitutes an inappropriate and
impermissible commingling of adjudicative and prosecutorial functions by the
agency;

0. The Order asserts that “U. S. Steel employees have taken actions which skews [sic]
or disrupts [sic] inspector observations.” Exhibit A, § 35 on p. 8. However, the
Order mischaracterizes the good faith efforts and generally accepted practices of
Facility personnel to achieve and maintain compliance in a manner consistent with
good operating practices. The Department did not advise U. S. Steel of its concerns
regarding these practices until these concemns were included in the Order. The
Order also fails to account for the fact that practices observed by Department
inspectors, such as sealing of leaks, are permissible standard operating procedures
and/or necessary for the safe and efficient operation of the Facility. Contrary to the
Department’s assertions, such practices are employed as environmentally
protective measures;

p. The Order requires U. S. Steel to “ensure consistent operation [...] at all times™ and
dictates that “[a]ny observed deviation from normal practices [...] will be
considered a hindrance under 2101.11.b.2. and shall constitute a separate
violation.” Exhibit A, § 36 on p. 9 and § 8 on p. 29. By these terms, the Order

mandates that U. S. Steel operate the Facility in the same manner at all times.




However, normal operations vary and U. S. Steel routinely implements corrective
measures as needed, regardless of whether visible emissions are being measured by
the Department or any other party. “Normal practices” for U. S. Steel include
taking appropriate environmentally responsible actions to minimize emissions. On
its face, the Order precludes U. S. Steel from taking environmentally responsible
actions to minimize emissions. For example, if U. S. Steel or a third party such as
a Department inspector observes a door leak, U. S. Steel is permitted to promptly
fix the leak. Instead, the Department has taken the position that efforts by U. S.
Sieel to minimize air pollution constitute a violation. In this regard the Order is
contrary to the Department’s declared policies and purposes of iis rules, vague,
unduly burdensome and impractical;

. The Order requires U. S. Steel to conduct a stack test of the C Battery quench tower
exhaust within 60 days of the date of the Order to demonstrate compliance with an
SO2 limit. See Exhibit A, § 74 on p. 20 and 9§ 6 on p. 28. This deadline is
impracticable;

The Order requires U. S. Steel to present the Department with corrective action
precluding further exceedances within 45 days of completing the SO2 stack test.
See Exhibit A, § 75 on p. 20 and § 7 on p. 28. The Order 1s premature in so far as
the Department presumes that U. S. Steel will fail the stack test and that corrective
action will be warranted. Furthermore, the 45-day deadline is impracticable;

The Order requires U. S. Steel, within 60 days of receiving the Order, to “deliver
to the Department an assessment of all emissions points existing at the Clairton

facility, as of the date of this Order.” Exhibit A, §8l.aonp. 23 and Y 2 on p. 26.




U. S. Steel must include in the assessment “all measures U. S. Steel would propose
to reduce its emissions of sulfur oxides, PM2.5 and visible emissions.” Id. These
measures “must sufficiently demonstrate reduction” of such emissions and U. S.
Steel must begin implementation within 30 days of Department approval. Exhibit
A, 8l.aonp. 23 and § 2 on pp. 26-27. Paragraphs 81.a and 2 of the Order are
vague, confusing, unduly burdensome, insufficiently specific and impractical. In
particular, requiring such a comprehensive identification (let alone an emission
reduction evaluation) within the requested time frame is tmpracticable, if not
impossible;

The Order requires U. S. Steel to demonstrate compliance with the Order based on
“two successive calendar quarters wherein U. S. Steel has shown a reduction in
visible emissions, sulfur oxides and PM2.5 emissions across all operating coke
batteries at the Clairton facility,” and discusses how the rate of compliance will be
determined. Exhibit A, q 81.b on pp. 23-24 and § 3 on p. 27. In this regard the
Order is vague, confusing, unduly burdensome, insufficiently specific, impractical
and inconsistent with the compliance provisions of the Consent Judgment;

. The Order impermissibly and unreésonably requires U. S. Steel to reduce emissions
compared to a baseline calculation that includes emissions points that are subject
to the 2016 Consent Judgment and emissions points that are not otherwise subject
to the Order;

. The Order impermissibly and unreasonably requires U. S. Steel to reduce emissions
compared fo a baseline calculation that does not fairly account for, or weigh, overall

emissions;




w. The Order unlawfully imposes a retroactively applicable requirement by directing
1. S. Steel to demonstrate a reduction of visible emissions, sulfur oxides and PM2.5
emissions for the “first consecutive quarter” compared to a baseline of first quarter
2018. See Exhibit A, § 81.b on pp. 23-24 and § 3 on p. 27. It is unclear how this
comparison is to be made. In so far as the “first consecutive quarter” is to be
understood as the second quarter of 2018, U. S. Steel must demonstrate a reduction
for second quarter 2018. However, the Order was issued on June 28, 2018, with
only two days remaining in the second quarter. This interpretation of the Order
violates due process because it requires 1. S. Steel to retroactively reduce
emissions;

x. There is no legal basis in the Order for requiring U. S. Steel to reduce door leaks
from the coke side of B Battery to “no more than ten leaks per month” nor is such
a requirement otherwise supported by law. Exhibit A, 81.c onp. 24 and § 4 on p.
27;

y. The Order requires U. S. Steel to reduce door Ieaks from the coke side of B Battery
to “no more than ten leaks per month.” Exhibit A, § 81.c onp. 24 and §4 on p. 27.
The basis for this 10 leaks per month standard is unclear. It is not an existing
applicable requirement and is considerably more stringent than any existing
regulatory or permit requirement. The Department has not shown that this new
standard is actually achievﬁble for B Battery, nor has the Department shown that a
heightened or more restrictive standard is necessary or appropriate. U. S. Steel has
been in compliance with the existing applicable requirements of the relevant

National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for B Battery coke side




doors, which are covered by a shed. The Department has no basis for establishing
the new limitation. Requiring U. S. Steel to hot idle two batteries if it does not
comply with this new limitation is unreasonable, extreme and inappropriate;

The Order contemplates that if U. S. Steel fails to meet certain requirements of the
Order, “U. S. Steel shall place its two worst performing batteries on hot idle until
such time [as the Department] has determined that U. S. Steel has complied with
the requirements of this Order.” Exhibit A, {8l.d onp. 24 and § 5 onp. 27. The
term “hot idle” is defined in the Order as “the cessation of all charging, soaking and
pushing of metallurgical coke.” Exhibit A, § 81.d on p. 25 and § 5 on p. 28.
Ordering such hot idle of the batteries is tantamount to a temporary source
shuidown due to the unique nature of coke oven operations. Furthermore, some
batteries are unlikely to withstand a hot idle, such that hot idling is effectively
tantamount to a permanent shutdown for‘ such batteries. The hot idle mandate of
the Order is unnecessary, premature, and untimely;

. Ordering U. S. Steel to hot idle two batteries is an extreme measure that under the
circumstances represents an inappropriate exercise of discretion. The Department’s
authority to issue enforcement orders is not boundless. Ordering hot idle is

inappropriate, unwarranted and a violation of U.S. Steel’s due process rights;

bb. The Order includes excessive and unreasonable sanctions for noncompliance;

cc. Emissions points that produce relatively low overall emissions can significantly

contribute to, or result in, noncompliance and severe sanctions;

dd. The Order describes how to determine the “worst performing batteries” to be placed

on hot idle i U. S. Steel fails to meet certain requirements of the Order. See Exhibit




ce.

if.

Eg.

bh.

il.

A, Y 81.d on pp. 24-25 and § 5 on pp. 27-28. The manner in which the worst
performing batteries are to be identified and the consequenées of such a
determination are vague, confusing, unduly burdensome, insufficiently specific and
impractical;

The Order requires U. S. Steel to pay a total civil penalty of $1,091,950.00 within
30 days of receiving the Order. See Exhibit A, § 1 on p. 26. Additional penalty
figures appear elsewhere in the Order. See, e.g., Exhibit A, 41 onp. 11. The civil
penalties assessed by the Order are excessive, inappropriate, unwarranted and not
commensurate with the claims in the Order;

The Department inappropriately assessed penalties more than once for the same
underlying alleged violation, thereby impermissibly inflating the total penalty
assessment;

The Department has failed to adequately explain the basis for the penalty
assessment in the Order;

The Department unlawfully applied a policy retroactively and violated U. S. Steel’s
due process rights to the extent the Department relied upon its civil penalty policy
known as “Policy and Procedure HPA #363,” which has an effective date of
January 10, 2018, to calculate penalties associated with alleged violations which
occurred before January 10, 2018; |
The Order includes a paragraph that addresses resolution of conflicts between a
requirement of the Order and other applicable requirements. See Exhibit A, § 9 on
p. 29. The Order does not reflect the fact that certain work undertaken at the Facility

to implement long-term compliance solutions, including those required by the
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Consent Judgment, may result in intermittent, short-term deviations. To the extent
that the Order regulates emissions from combustion stacks, it is inconsistent with
the Consent Judgment;
jj. The Department has failed to adequately articulate or show how the alleged
violations adversely impacted ambient air quality or public health, safety or
welfare;
kk. The Order contains requirements that are unreasonable and not necessary to prevent
or abate air pollution;
1. The Order does not fairly take into account U. S. Steel’s efforts to improve
environmental compliance;
mm.In issuing the Order, the Department exceeded its enforcement authority as
provided in Article XXI of the Department’s Rules and Regulations;
nn. The deadlines established by the Order are impracticable and unreasonable;
00. The deadlines in the Order preclude U. S. Steel from implementing projects that
cannot be completed within the compliance deadlines in the Order;
pp. The Order mischaracterizes U. S. Steel’s compliance with applicable air emission
laws and regulations; and
gq. The Order is vague and insufficiently specific.
B. U. S. Steel’s Direct Interest in the Action
4, U. S. Steel is a named entity to which the Order was issued, and whose activities
are restricted by the Order. As aresult, U. S. Steel is negatively impacted by the Order and has a
direct interest in the Order and this Appeal.

C. Conclusion

11




5. Through this Amended Notice of Appeal, U. S. Steel has identified its objections
to the Order, but reserves the right to amend or supplement the factual and legal basis of its Appeal
as authorized by the Department’s Rules and Regulations.

6. For the foregoing reasons, U. S. Steel respectfully requests that the Director vacate
the Order, or alternatively, vacate and remand the Order to the Department for consideration

consistent with the Director’s opinion.
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Dated: August 27,2018

Respectfully submitted,

(sl g

Michael I1. Winek, Esq. (PAID#69464)

Mark K. Dausch, Esq. (PAID#205621)

Meredith Odato Graham, Esq. (PAID#311664)

Babst, Calland, Clements and Zomnir, P.C.

Two Gateway Center, 6% Floor

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222

Telephone: (412) 394-5400

Email: mwinek@babstcalland.com
mdausch(@babstcailand.com
mgraham{@babstealland.com

David W. Hacker, FEsq. (PAID#91236)
United States Steel Corporation

600 Grant Street, Suite 1500
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15219
Telephone: (412) 433-2919

Email: dwhacker@uss.com

Counsel for Appellant
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EXHIBIT A

Enforcement Order
June 28, 2018
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COUNTY OF ALLEGHENY

RICH FITZGERALD
COUNTY EXECUTIVE

Jupe 28,2018
via certified and first-class mail: 9489 0090 0027 6037 9173 55

Mr. Michael S. Rhoads, Plant Manager
United States Steel Corporation :
Clairton Works

400 State Street

Clairton, PA 15025-1855

Re:  Enforcement Order No. 180601

Dear Mr. Rhoads:

Please find enclosed a copy of the Allegheny County Health Department’s Enforcement Order
#180601 for violations which have occurred at your facility, by the Department’s Coke Oven
Process Technicians and Method 303 contractor, and from US Steel reports, of various provisions
of Article XXI, Rules and Regulations of the Allegheny County Health Department, Air Pollution
Control ("Article XXI") and Installation Permit #0052-1011, at your company's Clairton Works.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please fecl free to contact the Air Quality Program
Manager, Jayme Graham, at 412-578-8129 or at jayme.graham(@alleghenycounty.us.

Sincerely,

Jason K. Willis
Assistant Solicitor

ce: David W. Hacker, Esq. (US Steel) via elecironic mail: DWHacker@uss.com
file

KAREN HACKER, MD, MPH, DIRECTOR
ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
AIR QUALITY PROGRAM
301 30 STREET * CLACKHEALTHCENTER * BULDING 7
PriTSBURGH, PA 15201-1811
PHONE (4 12)5788103 » Fax{412)5788144
P2AHR (41 2)687-ACHD (2243) - wWwwW.ACHD.NET




ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
AIR QUALITY PROGRAM

In the Matter of: United States Steel

Corporation — Clairton Coke Works Order #180601
400 State Street

Clairton, PA 15025

ENFORCEMENT ORDER

AND NOW, this 28th day of June, 2018 (hereinafter “Effective Date”), the Allegheny
County Health Department (hereinafter “ACHD” or “Depariment™) has found as a factual matter

and has legally concluded the following:

1. The Director of the ACHD has been delegated authority pursuant to the federal
Clean Air Act, 42 U.8.C. Sections 7401 -7671q (hereinafter “CAA”), and the Pennsylvania Air
Pollution Control Act, 35 P.S. Sections 4001-4014 (hereinafter “APCA”™), and the ACHD is a local
health agency organized under the Local Health Administration Law, 19 P.S. §§ 12001-12028,
whose powers and duties include the enforcement of laws relating to public health within
Allegheny County, including but not limited to, the ACHD’s Rules and Regulations, Article XXI,
Air Pollution Control (Allegheny County Code of Ordinances Chapters 505, 507 and 535)

(hereinafter “Article XXI™).

2, United States Steel Corporation (“U.S. Steel™) is a corporation organized under the
law of the state of Delaware and operates coke ovens at its Clairton Works facility situated in the

city of Clairton, Allegheny County, PA.

3. U.S. Steel Clairton Works is the largest by-products-coke plant in North America.
Clairton Works operates ten coke batteries and produces approximately 10,000 tons of coke per

1




day from the destructive distiliation (carbonization) of more than 16,000 tons of coal. During the
carbonization process, approximately 215 million cubic feet of coke oven gas are produced. The
volatile products of coal contained in the coke oven gas are recovered in the by-products plant. In
addition to the coke oven gas, daily production of these by-products include 145,000 gallons of
crude coal tar, 55,000 gallons of light oil, 35 tons of elemental sulfur, and 50 tons of anhydrous
ammonia.

4, Clairton Works is located approximately 20 miles south of Pittsburgh on 392 acres
along 3.3 miles of the west bank of the Monongahela River. The plant was built by St Clair Steel
Company iﬂ 1901 and bought by U.S. Steel in 1904, The first coke batteries were built in 1918.
The coke produced is used in the blast furnace operations in the production of molten iron for steel
making.

5. In March 2018, ACHD conducted a comprehensive review of U.S. Steel’s
compliance with the provisions of Article XXI, the March 24, 2016 consent decree (as issued by
the AlIegheny-Court of Common Pleas and agreed upon by the parties) and its Title V Operating

Permit as issued on March 27, 2012.

6. Although the 2016 Consent Decree was intended to provide an avenue for U.S.
Steel to lower its emission profile, it continues to experience ever-increasing visible emissions and

unexplained exceedance.

ONGOING AND DETERIORATING ISSUES

7. “Charging emissions” is defined under Article XXI, Section 2101.20 as follows:

"Charging emissions" means any emissions occurring during the introduction of
coal into the coke oven from the time that the gate(s) on the larry car coal hopper
is opened or mechanical feeders start the flow of coal into the oven until the last
charging port seal is replaced. Charging emissions include any air contaminant
emitted from one or more charging ports, spaces between the charging port rings

2




and the oven refractory, drop sleeves, larry car hoppers and any associated air
pollution control equipment, but shall not include emissions occurring during the
temporary removal of a charging port seal for the purpose of sweeping excess coal
spillage into the oven just charged, after such seal has been firmly seated over the
charging port following the removal of the larry car,

8. Battery B rate of compliance has worsened since 2013, where it achieved 100%
observed compliance, to 2017, where its compliance rate dropped to 61% (with 16 violations). As

of April 2018, it maintains a compliance rate of 78%.

9. Battery 13 performance has likewise deteriorated over the years. Specifically,

compliance decreased from 100% to 70% in 2017 and as of April 2018, compliance is only 50%.
10.  Battery 3 emission performance had declined from 100% compliance in 2015 to

81% in 2016 and 86% in 2017.

11.  Battery 14 performance has declined from 100% compliance in 2014 to 81% in

2017 and as of April 2018 in compliance during 73% of the observations.

12.  For the calendar years 2015 through 2017, Batter C has failed to aqhieve an
observed compliance percentage greater than 83%.

13.  From 2014 to 2017, the Clairton Coke Works facility-wide compliance percentage
has gone from 94.4% to 84.0% and is 75% as of April 2018.

DOOR AREA EMISSSIONS

14.  Article XXI also regulates emissions from door areas surrounding each coke oven

in a battery. “Door Areas” is defined under Article XXI, Section 2101.20 as follows:

"Door area' means the vertical face of a coke oven between the bench and the top
of the battery and between two adjacent buckstays, including but not limited to, the
door, chuck door, door seal, jamb, and refractory.
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15.  The door areas around Battery 1 has experienced increased emissions since 2014
when there was 100% compliance. In 2017, Battery 1 was in compliance across 88% of the

observations.

16.  Similarly, the door areas around Battery 3 has experienced an increase of emissions
since 2014 when it was in 100% compliance. In 2017, Battery 3 was in compliance across 86%

of the observations.
HIGH OPACITY DOOR AREA EMISSIONS

17.  The annual number of high opacity door violations has increase since 2014.

Specifically, violations increased from 33 to 295 in 2017.
18.  Battery I had no high opacity door violations in 2014 but had 84 violations in 2017.
19.  Battery 2 had two high opacity door violations in 2014 but had 59 violations in
2017.

20.  Battery 3 had one high opacity door violation in 2014 but had 84 violations as of

April 2017.

21.  Asof April 2018, there have been 92 violations facility wide in 2018.

CHARGING PORTS EMISSIONS

22,  Article XXI regulates emissions coming from the charging port at the top of the
battery. “Charging ports” is defined under Article XXI, Section 2101.20 as “any opening through
which coal is, or may be, introduced into a coke oven, whether or not such opening is regularly

used for such purpose.”




23.  In 2016, Battery B was in violation of Article XXI no fewer than nine times in

2016. Similarly, Battery 20 was in violation of Article XXI 6 times in 2016.
PUSHING EMISSIONS

24.  Article XXI further regulates the pushing of coke from the coke oven to rail cars
for cooling via water, a process known as quenching. Specifically, Article XXI, Section 2101.20

defines “pushing” as follows:

"Pushing" means the operation by which coke is removed from a coke oven and
transported to a quench station, beginning, for the coke oven batteries designated
13, 14, 15, 20, and B at the USX Corporation Clairton Works, at the time the coke
mass starts to move and ending at the time the coke transfer car enters the coke
quenching system, and for all other coke oven batteries, beginning when the coke
side door is first removed from a coke oven and continuing until the quenching
operation is commenced.

25.  From 2014 to 2017, U.S. Steel has experienced low compliance with respect to
pushing emissions from the Clairton Coke Works. In particular, annual compliance over that

period has gone between 91.7%, 91.9%, 87.2% and 92.9%, respectively.

26. Batteries 1, 2, and 3 have not achieved a compliance rate above 90%, on an annual

basis, from 2015 to 2017.

27.  With respect to observations of visible emissions during the travel between the
transfer cars to the coke quenching system, Batteries 1 and 2 have been below 90% compliance in

2016 and 2017.

28.  Travel compliance across the plant is generally low thus as of April 2018 with

. batteries 1, 2, 3, 13, and 15, all having a compliance rate at or below 90%.

SOAKING EMISSIONS




29.  Arcle XXI further regulates the soaking of coke. Insofar as Article XXI
incorporates federal regulations with respect to source categories, the Environmental Protection
Agency deﬁm_as soaking as “that period in the coking cycle that starts when an oven is dampered
off the collecting main and vented to the atmosphere through an open standpipe prior to pushing

and ends when the coke begins to be pushed from the oven.” See 40 C.F.R. § 63.7352

30.  In 2014, U. S, Steel managed to achieve a facility-wide compliance rate of 99.1%

with respect to emissions emanating from the soaking process.

31. Since 2014, compliance has deteriorated. In particular, Batteries 13, 14, and 15 had

poor compliance in both 2016 and 2017 with no battery achieving compliance of greater than 87%.

32.  Battery C has been the worst performing battery in 2014 through 2017 and as of

April 2018, with a compliance rate of 67%.

ASSESSMENT OF PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE XX
OF THE ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT RULES AND
REGULATIONS ‘
(§2101.11 PROHIBITION OF AIR POLLUTION)

33, Article XXI, Section 2105.11 prohibits broadly a source from operating a source of
air contaminants in such a manner as to constitute a violation of Article XXI. Section 2101.11 sets

forth, in its entirety, the following:

§2101.11 PROHIBITION OF AIR POLLUTION

a. It shall be a violation of this Article to fail to comply with, or to cause or
assist in the violation of, any requirement of this Article, or any order or permit
issued pursuant to authority granted by this Article. No person shall willfully,
negligently, or through the failure to provide and operate necessary control
equipment or to take necessary precautions, operate any source of air contaminants
in such manner that emissions from such source:




L. Exceed the amounts permitted by this Article or by any order or
permit issued pursuant to this Article:

2. Cause an exceedance of the ambient air quality standards
established by §2101.10 of this Article; or

3. May reasonably be anticipated to endanger the public health, safety, or
welfare,

b. It shail be a violation of this Article for any person to:

4. Operate, or allow to be operated, any source in such manner as to
allow the release of air contaminants into the open air or to cause air
pollution as defined in this Article, except as is explicitly permitted

by this Article;

5. In any manner hinder, obstruct, delay, resist, prevent, or in any way
interfere or attempt to interfere with the Department or its personnel
in the performance of any duty hereunder, including the
Department's inspection of any source;

6. Violate the provisions of 18 Pa.C.S. §4903 (relating to false
swearing) or §4904 (relating to unsworn falsification to authorities)
in regard to any submittals to the Department under this Article; or

7. Submit any application form, report, compliance certification, or
any other submittal to the Department under this Article which is, in
whole or in part, false, inaccurate, or incomplete.

¢. It shall be a violation of this Article for any person to cause a
public nuisance, or to cause air, soil, or water pollution resulting
from any air pollution emission. No person who operates, or allows
to be operated, any air contaminant source shall allow pollution of
the air, water, or other natural resources of the Commonwealth and
the County resulting from such source.

34,  U.S. Steel has chronically failed to comply with the requirements of Article XXI
and its Title V permit. Their failure to prevent the numerous emissions constitute violations of

Article XXI and its Title V permit.




35.  In addition to its decreased rate of compliance, U.S. Steel employees have taken
actions which skews or disrupts inspector observations. Specifically, the following conduct has

been experienced:

a) U.S. Steel employees have engaged in a practice wherein an employee will walk a
few paces in advance of inspectors and apply a mud-like mixture to emission points
in such a manner as to obscure the emission. Subsequent walkthroughs revealed
that the patches were merely temporary in nature and not reasonable cotrective

action to prevent future emissions;

b) U.S. Steel employees have operated coke oven door removal machines in such a
manner $0 as to obscure ACHD egmission observations while not obscuring attempts

by employees to apply a temporary patch to door leaks;

c) U.S. Steel employees have failed to properly seat charging lids on top of charging
ports. Lids are either not seated on the ports, seated too high above the sealing
material or the ports are obscured by the placement of coal on top of the ports. All
three actions or inactions compromise inspectors’ ability to properly assess visible

emissions emanating from the charging ports;

d) ACHD inspectors routinely observe high opacity emissions from the coke side of
the battery and readily surmise that based on their observations, emissions from

ovens in Batteries One, Two and Three may be observed at any time of day,
€} Inspectors have observed “short” or incomplete charging of coal into the coke oven;

f) ACHD inspectors have observed partial pushing of coke from ovens to avoid the

potential violations otherwise associated with a complete pushing of coke. Any




g)

h)
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emissions that should have been observed as part of a complete push is
circumvented by a partialr push;

Inspectors have noted an issue with respect to charges beyond the fifth charge
otherwise observed for Method 303 compliance. Although Method 303
observation are complete following a fifth charge of a battery, it is often during
subsequent charges (not otherwise pat of the Method 303 observations) when
battery emissions visibly increase. Moreover, ACHD inspectors have observed

emission for a duration longer than otherwise anticipated;

ACHD inspectors have observed the removal of flue caps thereby diverting
emissions that would have otherwise traveled to the combustion stack. By
removing the flue caps in this manner, U.S. Steel effectively avoided violations

attributable to stack emissions; and,

ACHD inspectors have observed offtake pipe caps being cracked open on a sealed
oven. By doing so, emissions that would have been released by the door areas are
diverted away from inspectors conducting a door inspection; thereby avoiding

potential door inspection violations.

U.S. Steel shall ensure consistent operation in conformity with Article XXI and its

Title V Operating Permit; such operations shall be consistent at all times irrespective of whether

Method 303 or any other compliance observations are taking place. Any observed deviation

from normal practices or any other methods employed by on-site personnel to hinder inspections

will be considered a hindrance under 2101.11.b.2. and shall constitute a separate violation.




ASSESSMENT OF PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE XX1
OF THE ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT RULES AND
REGULATIONS AND TITLE V PERMIT CONDITIONS
3RD QUARTER 2017 VIOLATIONS FOR VISIBLE EMISSIONS

37.  During the third quarter of 2017, specifically July 1, 2017, through September 30,
2017, both the Department’s Coke Oven Process Technicians and Method 303 contractor (retained
to perform onsite inspections), observed numerous violations to provisions of Article XXI, Rules

and Regulations of the Allegheny County Health Department, Air Pollution Control ("Article

XXI"y at the Clairton Works.

38.  The Department has‘.determ_ined that United States Steel Corporation is in violation
of Article XXI, Section 2102.03.c and various provisions of Section 2105.21, of the ACHD’s Rules
and Regulations by failing to meet the applicable requirements stated in Article XXI,
Section 2105.21. Specifically, Section 2102.03 provides, in relevant part, as follows:

§ 2102.03 Permits Generally
C. Conditions

It shall be a violation of this Article giving rise to the remedies provided by
Part I of this Article for any person to fail to comply with any terms or
conditions set forth in any permit issued pursuant to this Part.

39.  Article XXI, Section 2105.21 specifically regulates the operation of coke oven in

Allegheny County and provides, in part, as follows:

§2105.21 COKE OVENS AND COKE OVEN GAS

ortzons eﬁ%ctzve August 15, 1997, the remainder ejfﬁecnve Februar 1, 1994
arag e.6 added June 22, 1995, effective Jul 995 and amen d May
2010 eggct;ve May 24, 2010; §2105.21.b, ¢, an h amended zctive August 15,
1997: Subsection | amended Febru 12,2007 effective April 1, 2007. Subsection
i added August 29, 2013, effective rember 23, 2013. aragraph e.6 amended
November I3, 2014, effective January ] 201

a. Charging. No person shall operate, or allow fo be operated:
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1. Any battery of coke ovens installed, replaced, or reconstructed, or
at which a major modification was made on or after January 1, 1978,
in such manner that the aggregate of visible charging emissions
exceeds a total of 55 seconds during any five (5) consecutive charges
on such battery; or

b. Door Areas. No person shall operate, or allow to be operated, any battery
of coke ovens in such manner that:

1. For any batteries installed, replaced, or reconstructed, or at which a
major modification was made on or after January 1, 1978, at any time,
there are visible emissions from more than five percent (5%) of the
door areas of the operating coke ovens in such battery, excluding the
two door areas of the last oven charged and any door areas obstructed
from view;

ES * Ed
d. Offtake Piping. No person shall operate, or allow to be operated:
L. Any battery of coke ovens installed, replaced, or reconstructed, or at
which a major modification was made on or after January 1, 1978, in
such manner that, at any time, there are visible emissions from more

than four percent (4%) of the offtake piping on the operating coke
ovens of such battery; or

40. By this Order, the Department is not taking any action specifically regarding any
alleged failures to mest any requirements regarding pushing or combustion stacks (as determined
by a continuous opacity monitoring system (“COMSs”)), or soaking on Batteries 1, 2, and 3. Such

actions are taken separately through provisions of the March 24, 2016 Consent Judgment.

41.  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.a, specifically,
with regards to excessive visible emissions from the charging of coke ovens at Batteries 13, 14,
15, B, and C, the Department has assessed against U.S. Steel, a civil penalty in the amount of

$42,500.00.
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42, As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.b, specifically
with respect to excessive visible emissions from the door areas at Battery 15, the Department has

assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $6,450.00.

43,  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.d, specifically
with regards to excessive visible emissions from the offtake piping at Batteries 15 and 19, the

Department has assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $3,750.00.

44,  Accordingly, for the violations noted above to Article XXI observed during the

third quarter of 2017, the Department has assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $52,700.00.

ASSESSMENT OF PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE XX1
OF THE ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT RULES AND
REGULATIONS AND TITLE V PERMIT CONDITIONS

4TH QUARTER 2017 VIOLATIONS FOR VISIBLE EMISSIONS
45.  During the fourth quarter of 2017, specifically October 1, 2017, through December
31, 2017, both the Department’s Coke Oven Process Technicians and Method 303 contractor
(retained to perform onsite inspections), observed numerous violations 1o provisions of Article
XXI, Rules and Regulations of the Allegheny County Health Department, Air Pollution Control

("Article XXI") and Installation Permit #0052-I011, at the Clairton Works.

46.  The Department has determined that United States Steel Corporation is in violation
of Article XXI, Section 2102.03.c and various provisions of Section 2105.21, of the ACHD’s Rules
and Regulations by failing to meet the applicable requirements stated in Article XXI,
Section 2105.21 and ACHD Installation Permit #0025-1011. Specifically, Section 2102.03

provides, in relevant part, as follows:
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§ 2102,03 Permits Generally
C. Conditions

It shall be a violation of this Article giving rise to the remedies provided by
Part I of this Article for any person to fail to comply with any terms or
conditions set forth in any permit issued pursvant to this Part.

47.  Article XXI, Section 2105.21 specifically regulates the operation of coke oven in
Allegheny County and provides, in part, as follows:

§2105.21 COKE OVENS AND COKE OVEN GAS

gzortz'ans effective August 13, 1997, the remainder e{fecﬁve Febmaa? 1, 1994;
aragraph e.6 added June 22, 1995, ezﬁ"ective July 11, 1995 and amended May 14,
2010 effective May 24, 2010, §2105.21.b, e, and h amended eﬁéctive August 15,
1997, Subsection famended February 12, 2007 effective April 1, 2007. Subsection
i added August 29, 2013, effective September 23, 2013. Paragraph e.6 amended
November 13, 2014, effective January 1, 2015.}

® k%

a. Charging. No person shall operate, or allow to be operated:

1. Any battery of coke ovens installed, replaced, or reconstructed, or
at which a major modification was made on or after January 1, 1978,
in such manner that the aggregate of visible charging emissions
exceeds a total of 55 seconds during any five (5) consecutive charges
on such battery; or

2. Any other battery of coke ovens in such manner that the aggregate
of visible charging emissions exceeds a total of 75 seconds during
any four (4) consecutive charges on suchbattery.

b. Door Areas. No person shall operate, or allow to be operated, any battery
of coke ovens in such manner that:

1. For any batteries instafled, replaced, or reconstructed, or at which a
major modification was made on or after January 1, 1978, at any time,
there are visible emissions from more than five percent (5%) of the
door areas of the operating coke ovens in such battery, excluding the
two door areas of the last oven charged and any door areas obstructed

from view;

2. For any other batteries, other than those subject fo Paragraph b.3 of
this Section, at any time, there are visible emissions from more than
ten percent (10%) of the door areas of the operating coke ovens in such
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battery, excluding the two door areas of the last oven charged and any
door areas obstructed from view;

3. For any of the following batteries, at any time, there are visible
emissions from more than eight percent (8%) of the door areas of the
operating coke ovens in such battery, excluding the two door areas of
the last oven charged and any door areas obstructed from view:

SPECIFIC COKE OVEN BATTERIES
Source Name Location

A, Coke Battery #1 USX Corp. Clairton, PA
B. Coke Battery #2 USX Coip. Clairton, PA
C Coke Battery #3 USX Corp. Clairton, PA

D. Coke Battery #7 USX Corp. Clairton, PA
E. Coke Battery #8 USX Corp. Clairton, PA
F Coke Battery #9 USX Corp. Clairton, PA

G. Coke Battery #19 USX Corp. Clairton, PA; or

4. Emissions from the door areas of any coke oven exceed an opacity of
40% at any time 15 or more minutes after such oven has beencharged.

5. Unless for any of the following batteries at the USX Clairton Coke
Works, Clairton, Pennsylvania, there is installed big plug doors on the
coke side of each oven by January 1, 2000. Any replacement doors on
theses batteries, replaced after January 1, 2000, will also be big plug
doors. A big plug door is a door that, when installed, contains a plug
with minimum dimensions as listed below:

SPECIFIC COKE OVEN BATTERIES
Source Name  Minimum Width Minimum Depth

A. Coke Battery #] 18 1/4" 14 1/2"
B. Coke Battery #2 18 1/4" 14 1/2"
C. Coke Battery #3 18 1/4" 14 1/2"
D. Coke Battery #7 17" 16 3/16"
E. Coke Battery #8 7" 16 3/16"
F. Coke Battery #9 i7" 16 3/16"
G. Coke Battery #19 17" 16 1/4"
H. Coke Battery #20 17" 16 1/4"
c. Charging Ports. No person shall operate, or allow to be operated:
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48.
alleged failures to meet any requirements regarding pushing or combustion stacks (as determined

by a continuous opacity monitoring system), or soaking on Batteries 1, 2, and 3. Such actions are

Any battery of coke ovens installed, replaced, or reconstructed, or at
which a major modification was made on or after January 1, 1978, in
such manner that, at any time, there are visible emissions from more
than one percent (1%) of the charging ports or charging port seals on
the operating coke ovens of such battery; or

Any other battery of coke ovens in such manner that, at any time, there
are visible emissions from more than two percent (2%) of the charging
ports or charging port seals on the operating coke ovens of such battery.

Offtake Piping. No person shall operate, or allow to be operated:

L.

Any battery of coke ovens installed, replaced, or reconstructed, or at
which a major modification was made on or after January 1, 1978, in
such manner that, at any time, there are visible emissions from more
than four percent (4%) of the offtake piping on the operating coke
ovens of such battery; or

Any other battery of coke ovens in such manner that, at any time, there

are visible emissions from more than five percent (5%) of the offiake
piping on the operating coke ovens of such battery.

I

Soaking. At no time shall soaking emissions from a standpipe cap opening
exceed twenty percent (20%) opacity. An exclusion from this opacity limit
shall be allowed for two (2) minutes after a standpipe cap is opened.
Compliance with this standard shall be determined through observing the
standpipe from a position where the observer can note the time the oven is
dampered off and, following the two minute exclusion, read the soaking
emissions from the open standpipe in accordance with Method 9.

By this Order, the Department is not taking any action specifically regarding any

taken separately through provisions of the March 24, 2016 Consent Judgment.

49,

with regards to excessive visible emissions from the charging of coke ovens at Batteries I, 2, 3,

As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.a, specifically,
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13, 14, 15, B, and C, the Department has assessed against U.S. Steel, a civil penalty in the amount

of $168,350.00.

50.  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.b, specifically

with respect to excessive visible emissions from the door areas at Batteries 2, 13, 15, B, and C

insofar as the emissions are in violation of Section V.A.1.c of Instaliation Permit #0052-1011, with

a civil penalty in the amount of $17,500.00.

51.  Asaconsequence ofits violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.b.4 (40% opacity
std.), specifically with respect to excessive visible emissions from the door areas at Batteries 1, 2,
3, 13, 14, 15, B, and as a further consequence of its violation of Section V.A.1.d of Installation
Permit #0052-1011 regarding emissions from Battery C the Department has assessed a penalty

against U.S. Steel in the amount of $124,950.00.

52.  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section2105.21.¢, specifically
with regards to excessive visible emissions from the charging ports at Batteries 2, 13, 15, 20, B,
and, as a further consequence of its violation of Section V.A.1.e of Installation Perrnit #0052-I1011
regarding emissions from Battery C the Department has assessed a civil penalty in the amount of

$33,975.00.

53.  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.d, specifically
with regards to excessive visible emissions from the offtake piping at Batteries 1, 3, 13, 14, 15,

and 19, the Department has assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $27,650.00.

54,  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.1, specifically

with regards to excessive visible emissions from soaking at Batteries 13, 14, 15, 19, 20, and C
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insofar as the emissions are violation of V.A.1.g of Installation Permit #0052-1011, the Department

“has assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $65,525.00.

55.  Accordingly, and in summary, for the aforementioned violations to both Article
XXI and U.S. Steel’s Installation Permit observed during the fourth quarter of 2017, the
Department has assessed a civil penalty (attributable to the fourth quarter of 2017) in the amount

of $437,950.00.

ASSESSMENT OF PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE XX1
OF THE ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT RULES AND

REGULATIONS AND TITLE V PERMIT CONDITIONS
I1ST QUARTER 2018 VIOLATIONS FOR VISIBLE EMISSIONS

56.  During the first quarter of 2018, specifically January 1, 2018, through March 31,
2018, both the Department’s Coke Oven Process Technicians and Method 303 contractor (retained
to perform onsite inspections), observed numerous violations to provisions of Articie XXI, Rules
and Regulations of the Allegheny County Health Department, Air Pollution Control ("Article

XXI") and Installation Permit #0052-1011, at the Clairton Works.

57.  The Department has determined that United States Steel Corporation is in violation
of Article XXI, § 2102,03.c and various provisions of § 2105.21, of the ACHD’s Rules and
Regulations by failing to meet the applicable requirements stated in Article XXI, § 2105.21 and
ACHD Installation Permit #0025-1011, Specifically, Section 2102.03 provides, in relevant part,

as follows:

58.  Notably, the Department has observed that the number and severity of the violations

continues to increase from those established above for the fourth quarter of 2017,
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59. By this Order, the Department is not taking any action specifically regarding any
alleged failures to meet any requirements regarding pushing or combustion stacks (as determined
by a continuous opacity monitoring system), ot soaking on Batteries 1, 2, and 3. Such actions are

taken separately through provisions of the March 24, 2016 Consent Judgment.

60.  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.a, specifically,
with regards to excessive visible emissions from the charging of coke ovens at Batteries 1, 2, 3,
13, 14, 15, 19, 20, B, and C, the Department has assessed against U.S. Steel, a civil penalty in the

amount of $267,250.00.

61.  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.b, specifically
with respect fo excessive visible emissions from the door areas at Batteries 1, 14, 15, B, and C
insofar as the emissions are in violation of Section V.A.1.c of Installation Permit #0052-I011, with

a civil penalty in the amount of $37,500.00.

62.  Asaconsequence ofits violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.b.4 (40% opacity
std.), specifically with respect to excessive visible emissions from the door areas at Batteries 1, 2,
3, 13, 15, 19, 20, and as a further consequence of its violation of Section V.A.1.d of Installation
Permit #0052-1011 regarding emissions from Battery C the Department has assessed a penalty

against U.S. Steel in the amount of $115,525.00.

63.  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.c, specifically
with regards to excessive visible emissions from the charging ports at Batteries 15 and B, the

Department has assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $33,375.00.

18




64.  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.d, specifically
with regards to excessive visible emissions from the offtake piping at Batteries 13, 14, 15, 19 and

20, the Department has assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $46,375.00.

65.  As a consequence of its violation of Article XXI, Section 2105.21.i, specifically
with regards to excessive visible emissions from soaking at Batteries 2, 13, 14, 15, 19, 20, and C
and Battery C insofar as the emissions are violation of V.A.1.g of Installation Permit #0052-1011,

the Department has assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $101,275.00.

66.  Accordingly, and in summary, for the aforementioned violations to both Article
XXI and U.S. Steel’s Installation Permit observed during the first quarter of 2018, the Department

has assessed a civil penalty (attributable to the first quarter of 2018) in the amount of $601,300.00.

ASSESSMENT OF PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER No.
180202 (EXCEEDENCE OF THE SO: HOURLY LIMIT IN INSTALLATION PERMIT

No. 0052-1017

67.  OnFebruary 27, 2018, the Department issued its Administrative Order No. 180202
against U.S, Steel for exceeding the hourly limit for SOz emission found in it Installation Permit

No. 0052-1017.

68.  Specifically, Permit No. 0052-1017 maintains a hourly limit for the emission of SOz
of 5.00 pounds per hour. See Installation Permit No. 0052-1017, Condition V.B.1.c.
69.  The results of a stack test performed at the C Battery Quench Tower revealed

emissions of 8.28 pounds per hour.

70.  The Department afforded U.S. Steel 30 days in which to “submit to the ACHD what

corrective actions have been, and will be, taken to bring the C Battery Quench Tower Exhaust into
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compliance with the emission limits indicated in Installation Permit No. 0052-1017, Condition
V.B.l.c.” See Administrative Otder No. 180202,

71.  U.S. Steel transmitted a “response” to the Department, on fwo separate occasions,
failing to explain the cause of the exceedance and it failed to provide any corrective action that
has, or will be taken to bring C Battery Quench Tower Exhaust into compliance.

72.  Notwithstanding the requirement that U.S. Steel submit corrective actions to the
Department, four months later, U.S. Steel still has failed to suggest any actions it would take to
correct a violation of this permit limit.

73.  To the extent that U.S. Steel has failed to comply with Administrative Order No.
180202, such constitutes a violation of Articte XXI, Section 2109.03.e.

74.  Asaconsequence ofits violation of Article XX, the Department hereby orders and
directs U.S. Steel to conduct, within sixty (60) days of the date of this Order, a stack test of the C
Battery Quench Tower exhaust in order to demonstrate compliance with the SOs limit set forth in
Condition V.B.1.c. of its Installation Permit. No. 0052-1017.

75.  Within, but no greater than, forty-five (45} days following the completion of the
stack test, U.S. Steel shall present the Department with its proposed corrective action which would
preciude further exceedances. In the event that U.S. Steel fails to present the Department with its
proposed corrective actions within the time afforded, U.S. Steel will be subject to, and the

Department shall impose, a civil penalty commensurate with the violation.
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ASSESSMENT OF PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF THE TITLE V PERMtT
ISSUED PURSUANT TO ARTICLE XXI

76. As a permittee of a major source of air pollution under Title V of the Clean Air Act,
U.S. Steel is obliged to comply with the terms of its operating permit, and to operate it facility in
such a manner as to avoid exceedance of its permit limits and to avoid the emission of pollutants

in the air in violation of Article XXI.
77. Specifically, Article XXI, Section 2103.12.£.1 requires as follows:

L. The permittee shall comply with all permit conditions and all other
applicable requirements at all times. Any permit noncompliance
constitutes a violation of the Clean Air Act, the Air Pollution
Control Act, and Article XXI and is grounds for any and all
enforcement action, including, but not limited to, permit
termination, revocation and reissuance, or modification, and denial
of a permit renewal application.

78. Subsection 2103.12.£.2 goes further to make clear:

1. It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action
that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted
activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this

permit;

79.  Similarly, Section §2103.22.g, specifically concerning additional requirements for
major sources of air pollution requires:

g Standard General Requirements. All permits issued under this Subpart shall
include the following provision: The permittee shall comply with all permit
conditions at all times. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the
Clean Air Act, the Air Pollution Control Act, and this Article and is grounds for
any and all enforcement action, including, but not limited to, permit termination,
revocation and reissuance, or modification, and denial of a permit renewal
application.
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80.  Article XXI contemplates further the Department’s broad authority to take a wide
array of actions as deemed necessary to aid in the enforcement of its provisions. Specifically,
Article XXI, Section 2109.03 permits the following, in relevant part:

§2109.03 ENFORCEMENT ORDERS

{Paragraph b.5 amended September 6, 1995, effective October 20, 1995.
Subsection d, and Paragraphs b.land d.1 amended August 29, 2013, effective
September 23, 2013.}

a. General. Whenever the Department finds, on the basis of any information
available to i, that any source is being operated in violation of any provision
of this Article, including any provision of any permit or license issued pursuant
to this Article, it may order the person responsible for the source to comply
with this Article or it may order the immediate shutdown of the source or any
part thereof. The issuance of an order to address any violations, including of
permit conditions, need not be preceded by the revocation of a permit,

1. The Department may also issue any such other orders as arc
necessary to aid in the enforcement of the provisions of this Article.
These orders shall include, but shall not be limited to, orders
modifying, suspending, terminating or revoking any permits, orders
requiting persons to cease unlawful activities or cease operation of
a facility or air contaminant source which, in the course of its
opetation, is in violation of any provision of this Article, or any
permit, orders to take corrective action or to abate a public nuisance
or to allow access to a source by the Department or a third party to
take such action, orders requiring the testing, sampling, or
monitoring of any air contaminant source, and orders requiring
production of information. Such an order may be issued if the
Department finds that any condition existing in or on the facility or
source involved is causing, confributing to, or creating danger of air
pollution, or ifit finds that the permittee or any person is in violation
of any provision of this Article.

2. The Department may, in its order, require compliance with
such conditions as are necessary to prevent or abate air
pollution or effect the purposes of this Asticle.

81.  Asaconsequence ofits violation of Article XXTI and conditions contained in it Title

V operating permit, the Department hereby order U.S. Steel to perform as follows:
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Within sixty (60) days of receipt of this Order, U.S. Steel shall deliver to the
Department an assessment of all emissions poi_nts existing at the Clairton facility,
as of the date of this Order, Multiple emissions points of the same type [e.g. all
flue caps] may be grouped together. The assessment shall include all measures U.S.
Steel would propose to reduce its emissions of sulfuf oxides, PMz5 and visible
emissions. Said measures will be subject to ACHD approval and must sufficiently
demonstrate reduction of sulfur oxides, PMjs and visible emissions.

Implementation of any proposed measures must begin within thirty (30) days of

ACHD approval.

U.S. Steel shall demonstrate compliance with the terms of this Enforcement Order
upon the completion of two successive calendar quarters wherein U,S. Steel has
shown a reduction in visible emissions, sulfur oxides and PMa 5 emissions across
all operating coke batteries at the Clairton facility. Reduction of visible emissions
shall be quantified by an increase in the rate of compliance with both inspections
and continuous opacity monitors. The quarterly compliance metric for the first
consecutive quarter shall be measured by comparison against the rate of compliance
{as observed by ACHD and Method 303 inspectors) during the first quarter of 2018
using the number of plantwide hourly exceedances of the 20% opacity standard and
the compliance rate as based on the coke batteries’ total compliance rate for the
first quarter of 2018. The second consecutive quarter compliance metric shall be

compared against that of the first of the consecntive quarters as a measure of further
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emission reductions. Standards for determining 21l rates of compliance shall be

based on relevant regulations effective as of the date of this Order.

Door leaks originating from the coke side of Battery B shall be reduced to be no
more than ten leaks per month based on the yard-equivalent reading from the

Department’s Method 303 contractor’s inspections;

In the event, U.S. Steel fails to meet any of the requirements set forth above in the
time and manner required, U.S. Steel shall place its two worst performing batteries
on hot idle until such time ACHD has determined that U.S. Steel has complied with
the requirements of this Order. “Worst Performing Batteries” shall be determined
by calculating the inspection compliance rate from inspections conducted by
ACHD and its Method 303 contractor [excluding high opacity door inspections]
and the 20% opacity clock-hour exceedance compliance rate from the combustion
stack COMs. These two rates will then be summed on a per battery basis for each
of the two quarters used. The two batteries with the lowest two-quarter compliance
rate sum constitute the worst performing batteries for purposes of this Order. In
orde;' to determine compliance with this provision of this Order, any subsequent
quarterly compliance metric for future quarters shall be measured by comparison
against the rate of compliance (as observed by ACHD and Method 303 inspectors)
during the first quarter of 2018 using the number of hourly exceedance of the 20%
opacity standard attributable solely to the remaining eight (8) batteries and the

compliance rate based on the remaining coke batteries’ {fotal compliance rate for
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the first quarter of 2018. Any successive quarter compliance metric shall be
compared against that of the prior quarter as a measure of further emission
reductions. For purposes of enforcing the terms of this Order, the term “hot idle”
is to be understood as the cessation of all charging, soaking and pushing of |
metallurgical coke the worst performing batteries. Underfiring of coke ovens may
continue until such time as the Department has made a final determination that U.S.

Steel has reduced its emissions in a manner consistent with this Order.

EVALUATION OF FACTORS EMPLOYED IN PENALTY DETERMINATION

82. Based on the observations of both the Department’s Coke Oven Process
Technicians and Method 303 contractors, coke battery emissions had increased over time and

across the facility.

83.  Recognizing that the batteries at U.S. Steel are capable of reduced emissions, the
Department recognizes that there is a need to deter U.S. Steel’s failure to take corrective action in

the future.

84.  ACHD has estimated that there are more than 1000 people working at U.S. Steel’s

Clairton facility at the time of the violations.

85.  The civil penalty, as imposed, reflects a balancing of the factors as set forth in
Article XXI, Section 2109.06(b). The specific (and more significant) factors unique to U.S. Steel’s
Clairton facility and its violations are that they are chronic in nature and its various rates of
compliance have gotten worse and that the emissions have the potential to negatively affect

communities adjacent to the facility.
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TOTAL PENALTY ASSESSMENT

Pursuant to Article XXI §2109.06, the ACHD is assessing a civil penalty of $1,091,950.00 against

United States Steel Corporation for the violations described in the preceding paragraphs.

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority granted to the ACHD by Aﬁicle XX1
§2109.03.a.1 and the Local Health Administration Law, 19 P.S. §12010, it is hereby ORDERED
that:

1. Within thirty (30} days of receipt of this Order, U.S. Steel shall pay the assessed
civil penalty of §1,091,950.00. Payment shall be made by corporate or certified check, or the like,
made payable to the “Allegheny County Clean Air Fund”, and sent to Air Quality Program
Manager, Allegheny County Health Department, 301 392 Street, Bldg. #7, Pittsburgh, PA 15201.
The Department has determined the above penalty in accordance with Article XXI § 2109.06(b),
reflecting relevant factors including but not limited to: the nature, severity and frequency of the
alleged violations; the maximum amount of civil and criminal penalties authorized by law; the
willfulness of such violations; the impact of such violations on the public and the environment;
the actions taken by U.S. Steel to minimize such violations and to prevent future violations; and
U.S. Steel’s compliance history.

2. Within sixty (60) days of receipt of this Order, U.S. Steel shall deliver to the
Department an assessment of all emissions points existing at the Clairton facility, as of the date of
this Order. Multiple emissions points of the same type [e.g. all flue caps] may be grouped together.
The assessment shall include all measures U.S. Steel would propose to reduce itsl emissions of

sulfir oxides, PMzs and visible emissions. Said measures will be subject to ACHD approval and
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must sufficiently demonstrate reduction of sulfuf oxides, PMays and visible emissions.
Implementation of any proposed measures must begin within thirty (30} days of ACHD approval.

3. U.S. Steel shall demonstrate compliance with the terms of this Enforcement Order
upon the completion of two successive calendar quarters wherein U.S. Steel has shown a reduction
in visible emissions, sulfur oxides and PMzs emissions across all operating coke batteries at the
Clairton facility. Reduction of visible emissions shall be quantified by an increase in the rate of
compliance with both inspections and continuous opacity monitors. The quarterly compliance
metric for the first consecutive quarter shall be measured by comparison against the rate of
compliance (as observed by ACHD and Method 303 inspectors) during the first quarter of 2018
using the number of plantwide hourly exceedance of the 20% opacity standard and the compliance
rate as based on the coke batteries’ total compliance rate for the first quarter of 2018. The second
consecutive quarter compliance metric shé.ll be compared against that of the first of the consecutive
quarters as a measure .of further emission reductions. Standards for determining all rates of
compliance shall be based on relevant regulations effective as of the date of this Order.

4. Door leaks originating from the coke side of Battery B shall be reduced to be no
more than ten leaks per month based on the yard-equivalent reading from the Department’s
Method 303 contractor’s inspections.

5. In the event, U.S. Steel fails to meet any of the requirements set forth above in the
time and manner required, U.S. Steel shall place its two worst performing batteries on hot idle
until such time ACHD has determined that U.S. Steel has complied with the requirements of this
Order. “Worst Performing Batteries” shall be determined by calculating the inspection compliaﬁce
rate from inspections conducted by ACHD and its Method 303 contractor [excluding high opacity

door inspections] and the 20% opacity clock-hour exceedance compliance rate from the
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combustioﬁ stack COMs. These two rates will then be summed on a per battery basis for each of
the two quarters used. The two batteries with the lowest two-quarter compliance rate sum
constitute the worst performing batteries for purposes of this Order. In order to determine
compliance with this provision of this Order, any: subsequent quarterly compliance metric for
future quarters shall be measured by comparison against the rate of compliance (as observed by
ACHD and Method 303 inspectors) during the first quarter of 2018 using the number of hourly
exceedance of the 20% opacity standard attributable solely to the remaining eight (8) batteries and
the compliance rate based on the remaining coke batteries’ total compliance rate for the first
quarter of 2018, Any successive quarter compliance metric shall be compared against that of the
prior quarter as a measure of further emission reductions. For purposes of enforcing the terms of
this Order, the term “hot idle” is to be understood as the cessation of all charging, soaking and
pushing of metallurgical coke the worst performing batteries. Underfiring of coke ovens may
continue until such time as the Department has made a final determination that U..S. Steel has
reduced its emissions in a manner consistent with this Order.

6. U.S. Steel shall also conduct, within sixty (60) days of the date of this Order, a stack
test of the Battery C Quench tower exhaust in order to demonstrate compliance with the SOz limit
set forth in its Installation Permit.

7. Within, but no greater than, forty-five (45) days following the completion of the
stack test, U.S. Steel is hereby ordered to present a corrective action precluding further
exceedances. In the event that U.S. Steel fails to present the Department with its proposed
corrective actions within the time afforded, it will be subject to and the Department shall impose

a civil penalty commensurate with the violation.
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8. 1J.8S. Steel shall ensure consistent operation in conforrﬁity with Article XXI and its
Title V Operating Permit; such operations shall be consistent at all times irrespective of whether
Method 303 or any other compliance observations are taking place. Any observed deviation from
normal practices or any other methods employed by on-site personnel to hinder inspections will
be considered a hindrance under 2101.11.b.2. and shall constitute a separate violation.

9. The requirements of this Order are intended to supplement legal requirements to
which U.S. Steel is already subject. If there is a conflict between any requirement of this Order
and other statutory or regulatory requirements, the more stringent requirement shall control, If
U.S. Steel believes that a conflict between the requirements of this Order and other legal
obligations is irreconcilable, such that compliance with this Order will require U.S. Steel fo be in
non-compliance with other legal obligations, then U.S. Steel shall provide the ACHD with an
explanation of such conflict in writing as soon as possible. The ACHD may notify U.S. Steel
whether ACHD concurs with its position and whether such provision in this Order is modified,
suspended, terminated, or continues in effect.

10, The imposition of the civil penalty or any other requirement of this Enforcement
Order is not intended and in no way releases U.S. Steel from any obligations imposed by or to
which it is subject under Article XXI or other final determination.

11.  The civil penalty payment and any documentation required by this Order and
correspondence with the ACHD shail be sent to the following:

Jayme Graham
Air Quality Program Manager
Allegheny County Health Department
301 39% Street, Bldg. No. 7
Pittsburgh, PA 15201-1811
Tel: 412-578-8103

Fax: 412-578-8144
E-Mail: jayme.graham(@alleghenycounty.us
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12. Pursuant to Article XI, Allegheny County Health Department Rules and
Regulations, Hearings and Appeals, you are notified that if you are aggrieved by this Order you
have (30) days in which to file an appeal from the receipt of this Order. Such a Notice of Appeal
shall be filed in the Office of the Director at 542 4th Avenue, Pittsburgh, PA 15219. In the absence
of a timely appeal, the terms of this Order shall become final.

13, This Order is enforceable upon issuance and any appeal of this Order shall not act
as a stay unless the Director of the ACHD so orders.

14.  Failure to comply with this Order within the time specified herein is a violation of
Afticle XXI giving rise to the remedies provided by Article XXI § 2109.02.

15.  The provisions of this Order shall apply to, be binding upon, and inure to the benefit
of the ACHD and U.S. Steel and upon their respective officers, directors, agents, contractors,
employees, servants, successors, and assigns.

16.  The duties and obligations under this Order shall not be modified, diminished,
terminated, or otherwise altered by the transfer of any legal or equitable interest in the Facility or
any part thereof.

17. The ACHD may, upon U.S. Steel’s request, agree to modify or terminate U.S.
Steel’s duties and obligations under this Order upon transfer of the property. Pursuant to Article
X1 of the ACHD’s Rules and Regulations for Hearings and Appeals, U.S. Steel may challenge any
decision made by the ACHD in response to any of U.S. Steel’s request for a modification of this
Order due to a transfer of all or part of the propetty.

18.  The imposition of this civil penalty shall not, in any manner, prohibit or preclude
the Department from exercising its authority to enforce the regulations under Article XXI of the
Allegheny County Health Department Rules and Regulations. Moreover, the imposition and any
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resolution of this civil penalty shall not, in any manner, prohibit or preclude any other party or
governmental agency or entity from pursuing legal action (civil or criminal) against U.S. Steel for

conduct that is the subject of this enforcement order.

DONE and ENTERED this 28th day of June, 2018, in Allegheny County, Pennsylvania.

For:
ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

g/ Jim Kellv 6/28/18

Jim Kelly Date
Deputy Director, Environmental Health
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF ALLEGHENY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

CounTY OF ALLEGHENY,
UN CIVIL DIVISION - EQUITY

Plaintiff,

V. Case No.

UNITED STATES STEEL CORPORATION,

Defendant,

CONSENT JUDGMENT

WHEREAS, Plaintiff County of Allegheny, acting by and through the Allegheny County
Health Department (“ACHD™), has filed a complaint concurrenily with this Consent Judgment,
alleging that Defendant United States Steel Corporation (“U. 8. Steel”) violated certain
provisions of the Pennsylvania Air Pollution Control Act, Act of January 8, 1960, P.L. (1959)
2119, 35 P.S. §§ 4001-4014 (“APCA™), and the ACHD’s Rules and Regulations, Article XXI,
Air Pollution Control (Allegheny County Code of Ordinances Chapters 505 and 507) (hereinafter
“Articte XX1).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the ACHD has found and determined the following:

1, The Dimctqg.af the ACHD has bean delegated authority pursuant to the Clean
Air Act, 42 US.C. §§ 740f 1-7671q (the “CAA™), and the APCA, and the ACHI is a local
health agency organized under the Local Health Administration Law, 19 P.S. §§ 12001-12028,
whose powers and duties include the enforcement of laws relating to public health within
Allegheny County, including, but not limited to, Article XXT,

2. V. 8. Steel is a Delaware corporation that does business within the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania at 600 Grant Street, Pittsburgh, PA 15219,

3. U. 8. Steel is the owner and operator of the Clairton Coke Works (hereinafter the
“Facility”) located in Allegheny County, Clairton, Pennsylvania, a coke manufacturing and by-
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products recovery plant ﬁé'hich performs destructive distillation of coal to produce metailurgical
coke and by-products such as tar, light oil, sodium phenolate, and ammonium sulfate.

4. The Facility includes ten operational coke batteries, each made up of a series of
ovens. These batteries are designated as Batteries 1, 2, 3, 13, 14, 15, 19,20, B, and C
(collectively, the “Baiteries™). 7 |

5. U. 8. Sieel began operation of a newly constructed Battery C in November, 2012.
Battery C replaced older batteries and resulted in significant reductions of particulate matter and
other pollutants.

6. In 2013, U. 8. Steel replaced two traditional quench towers, Quench Towers Nos,
5 and 7, with two state-of-the-art Low Emission Quench Towers at an approximate éxpendimre
of $60 million. This resulted in stgmﬁﬂant reductions of particulate matter.

7. In addition to periodic monitoring, U. S. Steel continuously monitors many of iis
sources for environmental performance and compliance af the Facility, These monitors include
continuous opacity monitors (hereinafter “COMSs™), continuous emissions monitors and various
continuous parametric monitoring systems throughout the Facility which results in having
thousands of compliance monitoring data values every day.

8. The ACHD regulates and closely monitors the environmental compliance of the
Facility, In addition to reviewing the Facility’s reports and compliance records, ACHD
maintains three coke oven battery inspectors at the Facility seven days per week, These certified
inspectors, infer alia, conduct daily visible emission observations using U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency Reference Test Methods 9 and 303.

9. U. 8. Steel’s operation of, and air emissions from, the Facility are governed by
Major Source & Federally Enforceable State Operating Permit No. 0052 and IP11, issued by
ACHD on March 27, 2012.

10,  On June 1, 2007, the ACHD and U, §. Steel entered into a Consent Order and
Agreement (hereinafter #2007 COA™).

Page 2 of 24




11,  The 2007 COA addressed, inter alia, compliance requirements associated with the
Facility’s Battery B.

12, U, 8, Steel completed the comective actions and supplemental environmental
project and paid the civil penalty required by the 2007 COA.

13, On March 17, 2008, the ACHD and U. S, Steel entered into a Consent Order and
Agreement (hereinafier “2008 COA™).

14,  Pursuant io the 2008 COA, U. S. Steel permanently shut down Batteries 7, 8, and
9 on April 16, 2009.

15.  The 2008 COA was amended on November 19, 2008, September 30, 2010, and
on or about July 6, 2011 (hereinafter “2011 COA™). The 2011 COA superseded and replaced the
2007 COA, the 2008 COA, and the November 19, 2008 and September 30, 2010 aroendments to
the 2008 COA in their entirety. |

16.  The2011 COA addressed, infer alia, compliance requirements associated with the
Facility’s Batteries 1,2, 3, 13, 14, 15, 19, 20, and B, and inter alia these batteries’ opacity and
pushing emissions limitations.

17.  On August 7, 2014, the ACHD and U. S, Steel entered info a Consent Order and
Agreement (hereinafter 2014 COA™), addressing, infer alia, compliance requirements
associated with the Facility’s newly-constructed Baftery C.

18.  As of the date of the Consent Judgment, U. 8. Steel has properly installed,
maintained, and operated the pushing emission control systems for the Batteries with good air
pollution control practices.

19,  The ACHD alleges that, during the period of March 24, 2009 through March 24,
2016, U. 8. Steel violated certain provisions of Article XX, as more fully alleged in the
Complaint filed in this action.

20.  Since at least 2011, the ACHD has met with U. 5. Steel on a regular basis to

discuss, inter alia, the allegations set forth in the Complaint and this Consent Judgment.
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21,  Since 2011, U. 8, Steel has expended over $30 millien in repair and rehabilitation
associated with Batteries 1, 2, and 3, and those repair and rehabilitation efforts for Batteries 1, 2,
and 3 included end flue repairs, ceramic welding and brick work, central door repair, underfire
gas work, and paiching.

22.  Since 2011, U. S. Bteel has expended over $30 million in repair and rehabilitation
associated with Battery 15, and those repair and rehabilitation efforts for Battery 15 included end
flue repairs, regenerator clean outs, ceramic welding and brick work, central door repair,
underfire gas work, and patching. |

23, Since 2009, U. S. Steel has already satisfied $3,948,000.00 in civil penalties
pursuant (o the 2008 COA, the 2011 COA, the 2014 COA, and various statements of viclation
issued by the ACHD.

74,  This Consent Judgment supersedes the 2011 COA and 2014 COA and any
amendments.

25.  ACHD and U. §. Sizel recognize that this Consent Judgment has been negotiated
in good faith and that the actions undertaken by U. 8. Steel in accordance with this Consent
Judgment do not constitute an admission of fault or liability.

26.  The Parties have agreed that the most effective surrogate for envirotitmental
performance across the entire Facility is plume opacity from the battery combustion stacks.
Therefore, the Parties have determined that oven wall inspections, as referenced herein, need to
be conducted to d{g::terminfe the extent of repairs necessary to ensure the Facility’s compliance
with applicable federal, state, and local air quality regulations.

WHEREAS, after a full and complete negotiation of all matters set forth in this Consent
Judgment and upon mutual exchange of covenants contained herein, the Parties agree that this
Consent Judgment is in the best interest of the Parties and the public.

NOW, THEREFORE, without any final determination or admissim; of fact or law,
intending to be legally bound hereby, and with the consent of the Parties, it is hereby
AﬁJUDGED, ORDERED, and DECREED as follows:
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L APPLICABILITY

A.  The provisions of this Consent Judgment shall apply to, be binding upon, and
inure to the benefit of ACHD and U. S. Steel and upon their respective officers, directors, agents,
contractors, employees, servants, successors, and assigns.

B. The duties and obligations under this Consent Judgment shall not be modified,
diminished, terminated, or otherwise aitered by the transfer of any legal or equitable ipterest in
the Facility or any part thereof.

C. In the event that U, 8. Steel proposes to sell or transfer the Facility or any part
thereaf, U, 8. Steel shall provide written notice to ACHD of such purchaser or transferee at least
thirty (30) days prior to the sale or transfer. U, S. Steel shall also provide a copy of this Consent
Judgment to any person or entity U. 8. Steel intends to make any such sale or transfer at least
thirty (30) days prior thereto.

D. ACHD may, upon U. 8. Steel’s request, agree to modify or terminate U. §. Steel’s
duties and obligations under this Consent Judgment upoen transfer of the Facility, U, S, Steel
reserves the right to challenge any decision by ACHD in response to U, 8, Steel’s request under
ACHD’s Rules and Regulations for Hearings and Appeals, Article X1,

E. The undersigned representative of UJ. 8. Steel certifies that he or she is fully
authorized to execute this Consent Judgment on behalf of U. 8. Steel, and to legally bind U. 8.
Steel to this Consent Judgment.

I GENERAIL TERMS

A.  This Consent Judgment addresses and is intended to address the violations alleged
by Allegheny County, through the ACHD, in the complaint filed in this Action.

B.  Nothing contained herein is intended to limit the authority of the ACHD with
respect to violations that may occur after the date of this Consent Judgment or to limit the
authority of the ACHD to segk further enforcement of this Consent Judgment in the event that
U. S. Steel fails to successfully comply with its terms and conditions.
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“ C.  The provisions of this Consent Judgment are severable. If any provision or part
theréof is declared invalid or unenforceable, or is set aside for any other reason, the remainder of
the Consent Judgment shall remain in full effect,

D, This Consent Judgment shall constitute the entire integrated agreement of the
Parties. No prior or conternporanegus conununications or prior drafts shall be relevant or
admissible for purposes of determining the meaning or extent of any provisions herein in any
litigation or any other proceeding,

E. No changes, additions, modifications or amendments to this Consent Judgment
shall be effective unless they are set forth in writing and sigaed by the Parties herefo,

F. A title used at the beginning of any paragraph of this Consent Judgment shall not
he considered to control but may be used to aid in the construction of the paragraph.

G. This Consent Judgment shall become effective upon entry in the Court of

H. In the event that U. 8, Steel fails io comply with any provision of this Consent
Jndgment, and the ACHD believes that such failure has created an emergency which may lead to
immediate and irreparable harm to the environment or community, the ACHD may, in addition
to the remedies prescribed hetein,pursue any remedy available for a violation df an crder of the
ACHD, including an action fo enforce this Consent Judgment, or any ather enforcement option
available to it under the CAA, the APCA, the Local Health Administration Law, the Rules and
Regulations of the ACHD, or other applicable statues or regulations. U. 8. Steel does not waive
any defenses it may have to such action by the ACHD,

L The ACHD reserves the right to atterpt to require additional measures to achieve
compliance with this Consent Judgment. U. 8. Steel reserves the right to chalienge any action
that the ACHD may take to require such additional compliance measures.

J. All correspondence with the ACHD concerning this Consent Judgment shall be
addressed to:
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Enforcement Chief

Allegheny County Health Department
Air Quality Program

301 39 Street, Bidg. No. 7
Pittsburgh, PA 15201

K. All correspondence with U, 5. Steel concemning this Consent Judgment shall be ‘
addrassed to:

Environmental Director
Mon Valley Works

400 State Street
Clairton, PA 15025

With a copy to:

David W. Hacker
Counsel-Environmental

600 Grant Sireet, Room 1500
Pittsburgh, PA 15219

L. Service of any notice or legal process for any purpose under this Consent
Judgment, including its enforcement, may be made by mailing an original or true and correct
copy by First Class mail o the above contacts and addresses.

IOI. DEFINITIONS

A.  Unless otherwise explicitly defined herein, any térm used in this Conisent
Judgment that is defined in the CAA, the regulations promulgated thereunder, or Article XXI
shall have the meaning givén it therein.

B. Forﬁpurpnscs of this Consent Judgment, the following words and phrases shall
have the meaning/ Stated:

1. “ACHD" shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble.

2, “Breakdown™ shall mean any sudden or unexpected event which has the
effect of causing any air pollution control equipment, process equipment or any other potential
source of air contaminants to fail, malfunction or otherwise abnormally operate in such manner

that emissions into the open air are, or tnay be, increased,
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3. “Consent Judgment” shall mean this Consent Judgment and all appendices
hereto.

4, “Charging” or “Charging Emissions” shall have the meaning set forth in
Article XXI § 2101.20.

. “Day" shall mean a calendar day unless expressly stated to be a Working
Day.

6. “Effective Date™ shall be the date on which this Consent Judgment is
executed by a judge of the Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny County and docketed in the
above caption action,

7. “Facility” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

8. “Hearing Officer™ shall mean the person designated by the Director of the
ACHD to hear administrative appeals.

9. “Maifunction” shail mean any sudden, infrequent, and not reasonably
preventable failure of air pollution controf equipment, process equipment, or a process to operate
in a normal or usual manner which causes, or has the potential to cause, the emnission limitations
in an applicable standard to be exceeded. Failures caused in part by poor maintenance or careless
operation are not malfunctions.

10, “Notify” ar “Submit” or other terms signifying an obligation to transrit or
communicate documents or information shall mean, for the purpose of meeting any deadling for
written communication set forth in this Consent Judgment, the date that the communication is
postrarked and sent by certified mail, return receipt requested or by a reputable delivery service
that maintains a delivery tracking system. In the event the communication is sent by facsimile or
e-mail, s mutually agreed upon by the Parties, the effective date is the date of receipt, Oral
communications, where reguired or permitted by mutual agreement of the Parties, must be
confirmed in writing within seven (7) days of the oral communication,

11.  “Push” or “Pushing” shall have the meaning set forth in the definition of
“Pushing™ as found in Article XXI § 2101.20.
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12, “Shutdown” shall mean the operation that commences when pushing has
occurred on the first oven with the intent of pushing the coke out of all of the ovens in a coke
oven battery without adding coal, and ends when all of the ovens of a coke oven battery are
empty of coal or coke,

13, “Soaking” shall have the meaning set forth in the definition of “soaking
emission from a standpipe cap™ as found in Article XX1 § 2101.20,

14, “Start-up” shall mean the setting in operation of an affected source or
portion of an affected source for any purpose.

15.  “Working Day” shall mean a day other than a Saturday, a Sunday, ora
holiday recognized by the Allegheny County Health Department. In computing any period of
time under this Consent Judgment, where the last Day would fall on 2 Saturday, a Sunday, or a
holiday recognized by the Allegheny County Health Department, the peried shall run until the
close of business of the next Working Day.

Iv. COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS
A, Oven Wall Inspections

L. U. 8. Steel shall conduct an inspection of the oven walls for Batteries 2, 3,
15, and any other batieries as may be required to meet the requirements for and make the
certification required by paragraph IV.B.1 of this Consent Judgment (“Oven Wall Study™).

2. 1, S. Steel shall complete and submit to the ACHD a summary of each
Oven Wall Study within sixty (60) days after completion of the respective Oven Wall Study.

3. If repairs or upgrades are necessary based upon the results of each Oven
Wall Study, then U. S. Steel shall prepare a work plan for such repairs (the “Oven Wall Siudy
Work Plaxﬁ”).‘ Each Oven Wall Study Work Plan shall list the planned repairs or upgrades and
ghall provide a schedule for implementation of the Oven Wall Study Work Plan. U. 8. Sigel
shall submit a copy of the Oven Wall Study Work Plan to ACHD.

4, U. S, Steel shall implement each Oven Wall Study Work Plan as

expeditiously as possible.
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B. Certification of Compliance with Performance Standard

1, No later than three years from the Effective Date, unless that deadline is extended
pursuant to paragraph IV.B.4 of this Consent Judgment, U. S, Steel shall certify, for each of the
Batteries, that for two consecutive calendar quarters: (i) U. 8. Steel’s emissions from the battery,
as measured by COMs, were at or below the maximum opagcity limits set forth in Article XXI
§ 2105.21()(3) and (4) for at least 98.5% of the reported hourly measurements and (i} there is
not a systematic component failure causing exceedances of applicable opacity standards.

2, Commengcing three (3) years after the Effective Date, if, for two consecutive
calendar quarters, any of the Batteries fail to maintain compliance with the opacity standards as
determined by the combustion stack COM, as set forth in Article XXI § 2105.21{)(3) and (4) for
at least 98.5% of the reported hourly measurements or if, for two consecutive calendar quarters,
there is a systemic component failure causing exceedances of those opacity standards, then a new
compliance certification will be required and stipulated civil penalties will be triggered pursuant
to paragraph VILA of this Consent Judgment,

3. If U. S. Steel is unable to make or, commencing three (3) years after the Effective
Date, maintain the certification provided for in paragraphs IV.B.1 or IV.B.2 of this Consent
Judgment, U. 8. Steel shall incur stipulated penalties as provided by paragraph VI A of this
Consent Judgment.

4, If the Oven Wall Study Work Plan for any of the Baiteries demonstrates that
refractory replacement at a baitery is necessary, and that a good faith engineering estimate of the
cost of implementing such refractory replacement for that particular battery (including the costs
of procurement of materials, labor, installation, and all other construction cost and excluding
engineering, desigﬁ, or other soft costs) is greater than or equal to fifteen million dollars
($15,000,000.00), thent U. S. Sieel may submit to ACHD for approval, in the Oven Wall Study
Work Plan for that battery prepared pursuant to paragraph IV.A.3 of this Consent Judgment, a
new deadline to meet the requirements for and obtain the compliance certification required by
paragraph IV.B.1 of this Consent Judgment. Any Oven Wall Study Work Plan that includes a
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new certification date pursuant to this paragraph IV.B.4 is subject fo Dispute Resolution in
accordance with Section X1 (Dispuie Resolution). If any Oven Wall Study Work Plan described
in this paragraph is subject to Dispute Resolution, then U. S Steel shall incur stipulated penatties
as provided by paragraph VIIIB of this Consent Judgment,

C.  Continuing Obligations for Batteries 1,2, and 3

1. At no ftime shall the soaking emissions from the standpipe cap opening exceed
twenty percent (20%) opacity. An exclusion from this opacity limit shall be allowed for two (2)
minutes after that standpipe is opened, Soaking emissions from the standpipg cap shall be
defined as uncombusted emissions from an open standpipe which has been dampered offin
preparation of pushing the coke mass out of the oven and shall end when pushing begins, ie.,
when the coke side door is removed. Compliance with this standard shall be deiermined through
observing the standpipe from a position where the observer can note the time the oven is
dampered off and, following the twe minute exchision, read the wmcombusted emissions from the
open standpipe in accordance with Method 9. |

2. For each of the three batteries, the coking time shall not be less than 21.75 hours.
If the coking time for any oven on any of these three batteries is less than 21.75 hours, U. §.
Steel shall record the oven, coking time and justification of the coking time. This information
shall be pravided to ACHD on a quarterly basis. Coking times of less than 21.75 hours shall be
considered in compliance with this Consent Judgment if caused by or related to a Stari-Up,
Shutdown, Breakdown, or Malfunction or if caused by extraordinary circumstances as sapported
by appropriate justification.

3. I£U. 8, Steel determines that compliance can be maintained at a coking time of
less than 21.75 hours for any of the three batteries, U. 8. Steel can propose to ACHE a
compliance demonstration for the shorier coking time, If the compliance demonstration is
sucgessfinl, ACHD shall anthorize a shorter coking time as agreed to by the parties. In addition,
if a shorter coking time is authorized, at any time subsequent to such authorization, if U. §. Steel

shows a statistically significantty decrease in compliance, ACHD may require that U. 8. Steel
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begin another compliance demonstration within thirty (30) days’ notice from the ACHD to
determine if U. S. Steel can continue to demonstrate complisnce under the shorter coking time.
If U. 8. Steel is unable to demonstrate compliance under such demonstration, the coking time
shall revert to the previously approved coking time.

4. U. 5. Steel shall maintain records of coking times fﬂr Batteries 1, 2 and 3 for five
years from the date of each push. Such records shall be available for review and copying by
~ ACHD upon request. Such information shall be treated as Confidential Business Information.

5. Each day, U. S. Steel shall perform four (4) soaking observations on Battery 1,
four (4) soaking observations on Battery 2, and four (4) soaking observations on Battery 3, all in
accordance with Method 9 as provided in 40 C.F.R. § 63, Subpart CCCCC, except that if it is an
overcast day or if the plurne is in a shadow, the reader need not position himself with his back to
the sun. U. S. Steel shall notify ACHD in the event that four soaking observations could not be
obtained in the event of an outage, Malfunction, Breakdown, unacceptsble conditions to conduct
observations or other extraordinary circumstances a;s supported by appropriate justifieation.

6. Each day, U. 8. Stesl shall observe at least eight (8) pushes per day at Battery 1,
at least eight (8) pushes per day at Battery 2, and at least eight (8) pushes per day at Batiery 3.
At least four (4) pushes at each battery must be consecutive, The observations must be
conducted i accordance with Method 9 as provided in 40 C.F.R. § 63, Subpart CCCCC. U. 5.
Steel shall notify ACHD in the event that the required number of observations could not be
obtained in the event of an outage, Shutdown, Malfuniction, Breakdown, unacceptable conditions
to conduet observations, or other extraordinary circumstances as supported by appropriate
justification.

7. Until U. S. Steel meets the requirements nemséry for the compliance
certification mandated by paragraph IV B.1 of this Consent Judgment for each of Batteries 1, 2
and 3, U. 8. Steel will impletnant for these batteries the following plans:

a Advanced Patching Plan outlined in Appendix A;
b. Flue Nozzle Repair Plan outlined in Appendix B;
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c. Regenerator Repair Plan outlined in Appendix €; and
d.  Gas Gun Improvement Plan outlined in Appendix D.

g 1f the ACHIY or U, S. Steel determines that one or more of the plans
referenced in paragraph TV.C.7. is inadequate to prevent fugitive emissions from Battertes 1, 2,
and 3, the ACHD may require, or U. 8. Stee} may submit at its own initiative for ACHD
approvel, revisions to the above plans.

D. Continuing Obligations for Battery 15

Until U. 8. Steel meets the requirements necessary for the compliance certification
mandated by paragraph IV.B.1 of this Consent Judgment for Battery 15, U. 'S. Steel will
implement the Advanced Patching Plan outlined in Appendix A.

E. Continuing Obligation fer Battery C

1. U. 8. Steel shall operate the baffle wash system or equivalent system (as
approved by ACHD) of B Quench Tower during the quenching of coke, as long as the ambient
temperature is above 32 degrees Fahrenheit.

2. By April 30, 2016, U. S. Steel shall certify compliance with charging
standards provided in Condition V.A.1Lb of [P 11, Article XXI § 2105.21.a.1 and 40 CF.R.

§ 63.302 or provide an updated Compliance Schedule in the event that U. 8. Steel is unable to
certify compliance with Copditinn V.A LD of IP 11, Article XX § 210521 a1 and 40 C.F.R.
§ 63.302 after installation éf the U-Tube System.

3. While this Consent Judgment is in effect and until U. 8. Steel certifies
compliance with the charging standards listed above in paragraph IV.E.2, compliance with
paragraph IV E.1, above, shall be deemed to satisfy the work practice standards required by
Condition V.A.1.v of IP 11,40 C.F.R. §§ 63.302(dX5) and 63.306.

4. The requiremnents of paragraph IV E.1, above, shall survive this Consent
Judgment and be incorporated into the Clairton Facility’s Title V Operating Permit during the

next periodic renewal.,
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V. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

A, Compliance with Applicable Laws

All activities undertaken by U. 8. Steel pursuant to this Consent Judgment shall be
performed in accordance with the requirements of all applicable federal, siate, and local laws,
permits, and regulations. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Consent Judgment, U. &,
Steel shall comply with ali applicable federal, state, and local regulations, statutes, and laws,
including but not limited to the CAA, the APCA, and Article XXI, as now in effect or as
hereafter approved by EPA as an applicable Allegheny County portion of thg Pennsylvania 81P.

B.  Permits

U. S. Steel shall be responsible for obtaining all federal, state, and local permits which
are necessary of the performance of any compliance re«qxﬁrem@ls reguired pursuant to
Section IV of this Consent Judgment, This Consent Judgment shall not be construed as a
determination of any issue related to any federal, state, or local permit. Where performance of
any portion of any Compliance Requirement herein requires a federal, state, or local permit or
approval, U, 8. Steel shall submit timely and complete applications and teke all other actions
necessary to obtain all such permits or approvals. U. S. Steel’s failure to obtain a requisite
permit or approva! from a regulatory agency or authority after U. 8. Steel has made all
reasonable efforts to do so, including the making of a timely, appropriate, and complete
application for such permif or approval, shall be considered a circumstance for which U. 8. Steel
- is entitled to relief under the provisions of Section IX (Force Majeure) of this Consent Judgment,
where such failure to obtain a requisite permit or approval results in a delay in performance of a
Compliance Requirement. Whether or not Force Majeure does apply is subject to Dispute

Resolution in accordance with Section XI (Dispute Resolution).
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VI. REPORTING

A.  U.S. Steel shall submit written: quarterly reports (“Quarterfy Reports™) within
thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar quarter to ACHD. The first Quarterly Reports
are due within thirty (30) days after the close of the first calendar quarter that begins following
the entry date of this Consent Judgment. The Quarterly Reports shall contain, at a minimum, a
list of every clock hour in the calendar quarter that compliance is not achieved for Article XXT
opacity limits applicable to the Batteries’ combustion stacks as measured by the combustion
stacks’ COM. U. 8. Steel shall indicats the date, time, root cause, and ovens Vthat are believed to
have coniributed to the exceedance. ’

B.  U.S. Steel shall submit a Semi-annual Deviation Report for all deviations from
Article XXI §2105.21(e)(4) and (e)(5) for all Batteries.

C. Reports and written notices required in this Section shall be mailed to the
individuals in paragraphs ILJ-K of this Consent Judgment.

VIL. CIVIL PENALTY

A. .S, Steel has consented and consents to the ﬁssesmnent of a civil penaity of
$3,973,000.00 in full setlement of all issues and alleged violations arising under or related to
those described in this Consent Judgment or as alleged in the Complaint, as of the Effective Date
of this Consent Judgment. :Do date, U. S. Steel has satisfied $3,948,000.00 of this assessed civil
penalty. U. S. Steel shall pay the remaining twenty five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) of this
assessed civil penalty within 60 Calendar Days of the Effective Date by corporate check, or the |
like, made payable to the “Allegheny County Clean Air Fund,” and sent to the Program
Manager, Air Quality Program, Allegheny County Health Department, 301 35th Street, Bldg.
No. 7, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15201.

B. The ACHD has determined the penalty araount stated above in accordance with
Articte X1, § 2109.06.b, reflecting relevant factors including: the nature, severity and frequency
of the alleged violations; the maximum amount of civil and criminal penalties authorized by law;

the willfulness of such violations; the impact of such violations on the public and the
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environment; the actions taken by U. S. Steel to minimize such violations and to prevent future
violations; and U. . Steel’s compliance history. The ACHD hereby releases and forever
discharges U. S. Steel from liability for any and all issues and civil claims for the alleged
violations arising under or related to those descrri—ﬁsd in this Consent Judgment, all similar claims
that ACHD could or should have raised in this action pursuant to Article XXI, U. 8. Steel’s
Operating Permit(s), or state and federal law, all subsequent related claims for violations of
Article XXI, U, 8. Steel’s Operating Permit(s), or state and federal law that are known or should
have been known to ACHD through the date of this Consent Judgment, including, but not limited
to, all currently outstanding or unresolved violation notices served by Pennf ﬁture: on U. 8. Steel
through the date of this Consent Judgment.

VIIL. STIPULATED CIVIL PENALTY

A, Should U, 8. Steel fail to meet or maintain the &:mplianca certification
requirements of paragraphs TV.B.1 and IV.B.2 of this Consent Judgment in a timely fashion with
respect to a battery, then U. S. Steel shall pay, as a stipulated civil penalty, the sum of tweaty
thousand dollars ($20,000.00) per month for each battery for which the certification has not been
timely mads. Commencing with the thirteenth month after which U. 8. Steel has failed to meet
the compliance certification requirements of paragraphs IV.B.1 and IV.B.2 of this Consent
Judgment in a timely fa.shiqn with respect to a battery, U. 8. Steel shall pay, as a stipulated civil
penalty, the sum of forty thousand dollars ($40,000.00) per month for each battery for which the
certification has not been timely made. These stipulated civil penalties shall be due and owing
automatically within 30 days after the close of each quarter. All stipulated civil penalties
described in this paragraph shall be assessed per battery, per month.

B. In addition fo the penalties above, U, 8. Steel consents to payment of a stipulated
civil penalty of f;'we hundred dollars ($500.00) for each clock hour that compliance for the
Batteries’ combustion stacks are not achieved for opacity Iirm'ts,'as determined by the
combustion stack COM, as described in Article XXI 2105.21(f)(3) and 2105.21(f)(4). The first
thirty-three {33) clock hour opacity limit violations of each battery stack in any calendar quarter
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shall not be subject to stipulated civil penalties. For ovens with completely replaced
throughwalls, said stipulated ¢ivil penalties shall be assessed beginning the eighth coking cycle
following the first charge after final heating wall replacement. These stipulated civil penalties
shall be due and owing antomaticaily within 30-days after the close of each quarter in which the
COM violation(s) occutred. In the event that either U, 8. Steel or ACHD has initiated Dispute
Resolution for an Oven Wall Study Work Plan that is subject to paragraph 1V.B 4 of this Consent
Judgment, and said Dispute Resolution process remains pending as of a date more than three
years after the Effective Date, then the stipulated civil penalties assessed pursuant to this
paragraph VILB of the Consent Judgment shall be increased to one thousand dellars ($1,000.00)
for so long as the Dispute Resclution process remains pending. ACHD warrants that it will not
unreasonably delay or prolong the Dispute Resolution process in order to increase the assessment
of stipulated civil penalties.

C. In addition to the penalties above, U, S. Steel consents to the payment of a
stipulated civil penalty of five-hundred ($500.00) dollars for each push where compliance for the
Batteries® pushing, and transport emissions are not achieved for opacity limits, as described in
Article XXI 2105,21(e)(4) and 2105.21{e)(5) respectively, whether observed by U. 8. Steel or
the ACHD. These stipulated civil penalties shall be due and owing automatically within 30-days
after the close of cach quarter in which the pushing violation(s) occurred.

D. 1 S. Steel shall submit a stipulated civil penalty of fifty-thousand dollars
($50,000) for each calendar quarter that the COM availability is less than 90%, These stipulated
civil penalties shall be due and owing automatically within 30-days after the close of each
quarter in which the COM availability is less than 90%.

E. In addition 1o the penaities above, U. 8. Steel consents to the payment of a
stipulated civil penalty of eight hundred dollars ($800.00) for each day where compliance with
soaking emissions for Batteries 1, 2, and 3, as specified and provided by paragraph [V.C.1, is not.
achieved. The Civil Penalties shall be due and owing automatically within 30-days after the
close of each quarter.
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F. - Stipulated penalties, as required by paragraphs VIILA through E, above, may be
offset, in whole or part, by approved supplemental projects. Such supplemental projects could
include, but not necessarily be limiied to, additional emissions evaluations and testing, and/or -
emission reduction projects. The approval of supplemental projects to offset the otherwise
required stipulated penalties shall be at the discretion of ACHD.

IX. FORCE MAJEURE

A.  For the purpose of this Consent Judgment, “Force Majeure” as applied to U. 5.
Stes] or to any person or entity controlled by U. 8. Steel, is defined as any event arising from
circumstances or causes beyond the control of U, S. Bteel, or any person or ;nﬁty conirolled by
U. 8. Steel, including, but not limited to, its officers, directors, employees, agents,
representatives, contractors, subcontractors, or consultants, that may delay or prevent
performance of an obligation under this Consent Judgment, despite U. 8. Steel’s diligent efforts
to fulfill the obligation, Such Force Majeure events include, but are not limited to, events such
as floods, fires, tornadoes, other natural disasters, laianr disputes, and unavailability of necessary
equipment beyond the reasonable control of U. 8. Steel. The requirement to exercise “diligent
efforts to fulfill the obligation” includes using diligent efforts to mitigate any delay caused by a
Force Majeure event, as that event is occurring and/or following such an event, so that the delay
or non-performance is minimized to the greatest extent reasonably possible.

B. IfU. S Steél is prevented from complying with any requirement of this Consent
Judgment due to a potential Force Majeurc event, U. S. Steel may claim that such an event
constitutes Force Majeure and may petition the ACHD for relief by notifying the ACHD in the
following manner: '

1, By telephone within one hundred-twenty (120) hours, and by U.S. Mail, or
the equivalent, within ten (10) Working Days of the date that U. S. Steel becomes aware, or with
reasonable care should have become aware, of the potential Force Majeure cvent irapeding

performance.
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2. Written notice of & potential Force Majeure event shall include the
following:

f. A description of the event and a rafionale for atiributing the svent
io Force Majeure;

b. A description of the efforts that have been made to prevent, and
efforts being made to mitigate, the effects of the event and to minimize the length
of delay or non-performance;

G An estimate of the duraiion of the delay or non-performance;

d. A description of a proposed timetable for imﬁlcmenﬁng measures
1o bring U. 8. Steel back inte compliance with this Consent Judgment; and

e. Available documentation, which, to the best knowledge and belief
of U. 8. Steel, supports U. 8. Stee!’s claim that the delay or non-performance was
atributable to a Force Majeure event.

X.  REOPENING

In the event that any condition contained in this Consent Judgment is medified or
declared void by the presiding court 50 25 to create a substaniial burden on U. 8. Steel to comply
with the timeframes set forth in this Consent Judgment, such imeframes may be extended for 2
time as agreed to by the Parties.

XI. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

A, Unless otherwise expressly provided for in this Consent Judgment, the dispute
resolution procedures of this Section shall be the exclusive procedure for resolution of disputes
arising between the Parties regarding matters included in this Consent Judgment.

B.  If, in one Party's opinion, there is a dispute between the Parties with respect to
implementation of this Consent Judgment or the implementation of any provision of this Consent
Judgment, that Party may send a written Notice of Dispute to the other Party, outlining the nature
of the dispute and requesting informal negotiations to resolve the dispute. The Parties shall make
reasonable efforts to informally and in good faith resolve all disputes or differences of opinion
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regarding the implementation of this Consent Judgment., Such period of informal negotiations
shall not extend bevond thirty (30) days from the daie when the Notice of Dispute was received
unless the period is extended by written agreement of the Parties. The dispute shall be
considered to have arisen when one Party receives the other Party’s Notice of Dispute.

C.  Inthe eveni that the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations
under this Section, the position advanced by ACHI shall govern, control and be binding unless,
within twenty (20) days after the conclusion of the informal negotiation period, U, 5. Steel
invokes the formal dispute resolution procedures of this Section by mailing to ACHD a written
statement of position on the matter in dispute, including any available factual data, analysis, or
opinion supporting that position, and inciuding any supporting affidavits and/or documnentation
relied upon by U.S. Steel, Within twenty (20) days following receipt of U. 8. Steel’s statement
of position. submitted pursuant to this paragraph, ACHD shall issuc a written statement of
. position (“ACHD’s Position™) on the matter in dispute, including available factual data, analysis,
opinion and/or legal arguments supporting ACHIY's position along with any supporting
affidavits and/or documents relied upon by ACHD.

D. ACHD's Position shall be binding upon U. S. Steel unless U, 8. Steel, within
thirty (30) days of receipt of the ACHLY’s written statement of position, files with the Hearing
Officer and serves upon ACHD 4 petition for dispute resolution (“Petition”), This Petition shall
set forth the matter in dispute, the efforts made by the Parties to resolve it, the relief U. S, Steel
requests, and any factual data analysis, opinion, affidavits, legal argument and documentation
supporting 1.8, Steel’s position. The Petition and ACHIYs Position shall constifute the initial
record for purposes of resolving the dispute. Either Party may request of the Hearing Officer the
opportunity to supplement the record with appropriate additional information, provided that such
information could not reasonably have been obtained or discovered prior to filing the Petition.
The Hearing Officer shall render his or her final decision on the basis of the full record,
including any supplemenial materials received. The final decision of the Hearing Officer shall
be appealable by either Party to the Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny County.
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E. Judicial and administrative review of any dispute governed by this Section shall
be governed by applicable provisions of law.

F.  Exceptas provided in Section IX, the invocation of informal or formal Dispute
Resolution procedures under this Section shall not of itself extend, postpone, act as a stay, or
affect in any way any obligation of U, S. Steel under this Consent Judgment.

G.  Whenever éenﬁca, process, or notice is required of any dispute pursuant to this
Section, such service, notice or process shall be directed to the indiviﬂual at the addresses
specified in paragraphs IL.J-K of this Consent Judgment, unless those individuals or their
stecessors give notice in writing to the other Parties that another individual'i;r address has been
designated.

XIl, EFFECTYIVE DATE AND TERMINATION

This Consent Judgment shall remain in effect until terminated (i) by mutual agreement of
the Parties, (ii) by U. 8. Steel following certification of compliance pursuant to paragraph IV.B.1
at all Batteries, or (iii) after five (5) years from the &ate of entry of the Consent Judgment, at the
election of either Party on no fewer than sixty (60) Working Days® notice. In addition, if U. 8.
Steel has failed to make the cerfification required by paragraph I'V.B.1 of this Consent Judgment
for more than two years after the deadline to do so, as established in paragraph [V.B.1 or as
extended pursuant fo paragraph IV.B.4, then ACHD may terminate this Consent Judgment on no
fewer than thirty (30) Working Days’ notice.

_ X1, SIGNATORIES

The Parties hereto have caused this Consent Judgment to be executed by their duly
authorized representatives. The undersigned representative(s) of U. 8. Steel certify under
penalty of law, as provided by 18 Pa.C.8. § 4909, that he is authorized 1o execute this Consent
Judgment on behalf of U. 5. Steel; that U. 8. Steel consents to the entry of this Consent Judgment
as a final Order of the Court of Common Fleas of Allegheny County; and that, except as
otherwise provided herein, U, 8. Steel hereby knowingly waives its rights to challenge this

Consent Judgment and o challenge its content or validity under any applicable provision of law,
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Signature by U. S. Steel’s attorney certifies only that this Consent Judgment has been signed
after consulting with counsel.
X1V. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

The Court retains jurisdiction 1o enforce the provisions of this Consent Judgment.
Datedthis D4 ¥ dayof Mg aeHh . 2016.

&L&@Mﬁ\‘\ _

Fudge:
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Allegheny County Health Department

AT

ey Thompson V

3/?4‘1 /Zolé

Date

nfty Director for Environmental Health

W02,

Michae! A. Parker, Esq.
Assistant Solicitor

5!&2*{ ,&o\l’:::

Date
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United States Steel Corporation

:Enq B, Sruthatledu

Aray-Sadith-Yoder
General Manager Mon Valley Works

Paul K.. Stockman
Cowunsel for U, 5. Steel

8fza |1t

Date

Date
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. Appendix A
Advanced Patching Plan

Track stack exceedances and corsective actions electronically along with the date that

repairs (wet sharry patehing, dry gonning, or ceramiec welding or the equivelent to these

techniques) were completed.

Repairs will be completed based on the following schedule:

- wet shury patching contpleted within 10 days of exosedance root cause identification;

- dry gnnning repair completed within 21 days of exceedance root canse identification;

- ceramic welding repair completed within 30 days of exceedance root canse
identification,

Days where the oven is taken out of service will not be counted. |

Charts of the megnitude and duration of opacities will be used along with oven wall

inspections to prioritize oven repair

A procedure for Identifying Ovens for Repair will be maintained in the Environmental

Meanagement Systent, '

Equivalent techniques will be approved by ACHD.

—am L




4.

) Appendix B
Flue Nozzle Repair and Replacement Plan

Track exceedsnces and corrective actions electronically along with the date that repairs
were completed.

~ Repairs will be completed based an the following schedule:

- Flue cleanout will be completed within 10 days of exceedance root cause identification;

» Flue nozzle replacement will be completed within 21 days of exceedance roof cmise
identification.

Days where the oven is taken out of service will not be coumted,

Flue inspections including cross wall ingpections (or equivelent tectmique) will be

performed monthly and the resalts maintained electronically.

A procedure for priorifizing repairs will be maintsined in the Environmental Managerent

Systern. -

Bauivalent techiniques will be approved by ACHD.




Appendix C
Regenerator Repair Plan

When a combustion issue arises based on the review of COM data and cross wall data, the
regenerators are inspected and the results are documented electronically.

Repairs are identified and priositized besed on a procedure to be mainfained in the
Brvironmental Management System.'

Bquivalent techniques will be approved by ACHD.




Appendix D
Gas Gup Improvement Plan

Cross wall data are used to identify potential gas gun issues,

Repairs will be completed based on the following schedwle:

-~ Gas gun cleanout will be completed within 10 days of exceedance root canse

- (as gun weld will be comapleted within 21 days of excesdance oot canse
identifiation: '

Repairs are documented electronically.

Follow-up cross wall temperatures are taken and documented electronically to track

Exquivalent techniques will be approved by ACHD,

e . - — ok




BEFORE THE DIRECTOR
ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
542 4TH AVENUE
PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 15219

UNITED STATES STEEL )
CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, )
)
Appellant, )
)
V. ) Appeal of Enforcement Order

) #180601
ALLEGHENY COUNTY HEALTH )
DEPARTMENT, Air Quality Program )
)
Appellee. )

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 27th day of August, 2018, a true and correct copy of the
foregoing Amended Notice of Appeal was served via hand delivery and addressed as follows:

Karen Hacker

Office of the Director

Allegheny County Health Department
542 Fourth Avenue

Pittsburgh, PA 15219

The following individuals were served by electronic mail:

Max Slater, Esq. Jason K. Willis, Esq.

Administrative Hearing Officer Assistant Solicitor

Allegheny County Health Department Allegheny County Health Department
542 Fourth Avenue 301 39™ Street, Bldg. No. 7
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 Pittsburgh, PA 15201
max.slater@alleghenycounty.us 1ason.willis@alleghenvcounty.us

-

Michael H. Winek, Esq.
Counsel for United States Steel Corporation




